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“Cypress’s priority for 1999 is to grow faster than the [semiconductor] industry...”
T.J. Rodgers, 1998 Annual Report
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LIFE CYCLE OF AN SRAM

One of Cypress’s objectives was to move the
bulk of its production to 0.25-micron technology
this year. The photos of our 256-Kbit SRAM
show Moore’s law, the ever-shrinking chip, in
action. In 1988, a 256-Kbit SRAM chip cost
over $1.50 to manufacture and produced 712
die per wafer (D/W). This year we introduced a
256-Kbit SRAM that was twice as fast, burned
half as much power, produced 6374 D/W, and
cost under 15 cents to build.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(In thousands, except per-share data)

1999 1998 Change

For the year:

Revenues $ 705,487 $ 554,891 27%

Operating income (loss) 52,823 (120,521) 144%

Net income (loss) 91,054 (104,918) 187%
Net income (loss) per share:

Basic $ 0.87 $ (1.03) 184%

Diluted $ 0.81 $ (1.03) 179%
At year-end:

Total assets $ 1,117,224 $ 823,996 36%

Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments 270,556 160,561 69%

Stockholders’ equity 697,975 498,723 40%

Stockholders’ equity per share $ 6.67 $ 4.89 36%
Weighted average common and common equivalent

shares outstanding
Basic 104,703 101,944 3%
Diluted 111,735 101,944 10%
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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

In the 1998 shareholder letter, I stated Cypress’s priorities
for 1999:

*  Grow faster than the industry.

* Achieve breakeven in the Memory Products Divi-
sion and solid overall profitability.

*  Quickly and efficiently integrate the IC Works
acquisition.

We achieved all three objectives:

*  Cypress grew 45% last year vs. the semiconductor
industry’s growth of 19%.

*  The Memory Products Division recorded a $2.5
million profit in the fourth quarter of 1999, and
Cypress produced a $39.7 million pre-tax profit,
excluding non-recurring events (which were
favorable in Q4). That pre-tax profit, less non-
recurring events, amounted to 19% of sales.

» IC Works was merged with our Seattle clock divi-
sion, and IIbok Lee, the former president of IC
Works, successfully leads the combined operation.
In one year, we have had less than 8% turnover at
IC Works, and zero key-employee turnover. Fur-
thermore, the Computer Products Division now
generates profit at a rate second only to our Data-
com Division.

Before I report on 1999 and tell shareholders why we
expect 2000 to be a great year, [ have . . .

SOME REFLECTIONS ON THE INDUSTRY

I am writing this report on my 52nd birthday, 3/15/00, as
I return from Washington, D.C., from a board of directors
meeting of the Semiconductor Industry Association
(SIA). The SIA counts as members companies that make
90% of all U.S. semiconductors. I first traveled to Wash-
ington 11 years ago to testify against an SIA pet project,
a proposed government-subsidized memory company
named U.S. Memories. That company was proposed to
be America’s counterattack vs. the Japanese semiconduc-
tor industry, which was winning the market-share battle.
The U.S. Memories measure was defeated, leading to a
Business Week cover story labeling me “The Bad Boy of
Silicon Valley,” presumably because of my role in the
impolitic dismantling of the U.S. Memories subsidy.

Testifying against U.S. Memories was no capricious act.
The management of U.S. Memories explicitly refused to
agree not to use government funding to attack Cypress’s
SRAM business. | felt it critical to prevent any more
counterproductive “help” from the government, given the
menace that their first “government-industry partner-
ship,” Sematech, already posed to Cypress.

Sematech was created in 1987 to fend off Japan’s
increasingly successful attack on the U.S. semiconduc-

tor industry, presumed (wrongly) to be led and funded
by the Japanese government. The 14 original member
companies of the Sematech consortium received $800
million from the federal government and used some of
that money to attack all non-Sematech companies,
including not only Japan Inc., but Cypress and other
American chip companies, as well. The method of
attack was clever and effective: Delay sales of the
newest pieces of semiconductor manufacturing equip-
ment to non-Sematech companies by up to one year as
a quid pro quo for Sematech’s government-subsidized
funding of the equipment manufacturers’ advanced
manufacturing equipment development.

I found out that the federal government was “helping”
Cypress when one of our engineers was not allowed to
see an advanced piece of wafer polishing equipment,
which was reserved for Sematech members only, at an
equipment company in Phoenix, Arizona. The president
of the company told me there were no “holdback™ con-
tracts between his company and Sematech, but years
later, in a suit between Sematech and Travis County,
Texas (in which Sematech claimed it was a “charity” and
therefore not required to pay property taxes), I discovered
a multimillion-dollar, one-year holdback contract for the
development of an advanced wafer polisher granted by
Sematech to the wafer polishing company. Cypress was
being attacked in a critical technology area by a govern-
ment-funded effort intended to fight the Japanese semi-
conductor industry! So much for those government-
industry “partnerships.”

The world has changed a lot since that 1989 Congres-
sional testimony. Sematech voluntarily terminated its
government subsidy program, leaving $200 million on
the table (partly for a good reason—Sematech wanted to
get off the corporate welfare rolls, and partly for a practi-
cal reason—Sematech had gotten too fat on its diet of
federal dollars, and needed to lay some people off,
unthinkable for a government-subsidized organization).

The SIA has changed its position and now officially
endorses a policy calling for no government subsidies to
our industry, and ironically, the “Bad Boy,” T.J. Rodgers,
is the current chairman of the SIA.

SOME REFLECTIONS ON CYPRESS

Fourteen years ago, Cypress was about to close its March
1986 quarter, one in which we reported $9.7 million in
revenue and $0.04 in EPS (27% operating profit)—a
report good enough to launch our initial public offering
on May 26, 1986. Cypress’s revenue in our IPO year was
$50.4 million, and since that time we have grown at a
22.4% compound annual growth rate (CAGR); faster
than the semiconductor industry, which posted a 14.3%
CAGR from 1986-1999.



Revenues 1986 1999 CAGR
Cypress (million) $50.4  $705 22.4%
Total Semiconductor (billion) $26.0  $147 14.3%

Fourteen years later, we are about to close the March
2000 quarter and have high hopes we will exceed $250
million in revenue for the quarter—a billion-dollar yearly
revenue rate—on our way to breaking the $1-billion
mark in 2000.

RECESSION BUSTING: NEW PRODUCTS

As the cover of this report shows, Cypress met its objec-
tive to grow faster than the industry in 1999—and would
have done so, whether or not the 1996-1998 semiconduc-
tor recession persisted. As Figure 1 shows, we did it
through unprecedented new-product revenue generation,
not because commodity asynchronous SRAM prices
rebounded (Figure 2).

New Product Revenue
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Figure 1. Cypress defines new product revenue as that revenue from prod-
ucts 18 months old or less. After holding steady at about $60 million per year
from 1996-1998, we (1) spent more on R&D, and (2) improved R&D effi-
ciency to ship a record $115 million in new-product revenue in 1999.

Commodity Asynchronous SRAM Prices
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Figure 2. Cypress commodity SRAM price increases are not driving
Cypress’s recovery. The company now produces a much smaller fraction of
its sales from commodity SRAMs.

The second reason our commodity asynchronous busi-
ness has declined as a percentage of sales is Cypress’s
focus on serving the data communications market vs. the
computation market. Datacom companies use very spe-
cialized memory-plus-logic chips, as [ will describe later.

DATACOM ACQUISITIONS

In 1999, Cypress gained significant datacom revenue and
expertise via acquisition. Those acquisitions, plus inter-
nal growth, grew our total revenue by more than 60%
over five quarters.
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Figure 3. In Q398, Cypress’s annualized revenue was only $504 million. The
company was near breakeven with a $20-million loss in the memory prod-
ucts group offset by a $20-million profit in the other three divisions.
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Figure 4. By Q499, Cypress had significantly reorganized and upgraded its
product portfolio to reduce our dependency on commodity asynchronous
SRAMs.

Datacom Shift
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Figure 5. In 1999, Cypress shipped 70% of its revenue to datacom compa-
nies, up from 51% in 1995. In 2000, Cypress will ship over $750 million in
datacom revenue.




DATA COMMUNICATIONS DIVISION (DCD)

Our objectives for the datacom division were to prolifer-
ate our successes in specialized data-communications
memories, particularly Dual-Port RAMs; to introduce the
next generation of high-performance clocks and data-
transmission chips in our new 0.25-micron BiCMOS
technology; and—simply—to grow. We achieved all of
those objectives except for one: We delayed the introduc-
tion of our 1.25 gigabit-per-second data-transmission
device to re-engineer it into a four-channel device. That
product is due this quarter.

Dual-Port RAMs
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Figure 6. We bragged about this megabit Dual-Port RAM in the 1998 Annual
Report. It has turned out to be the most successful multiport memory we
have ever introduced. It allows switching systems to move data at 7.2 giga-
bits per second, equivalent to the transmission of 500,000 typed pages of
data per second. In 1999, we completed an entire family of Dual-Port RAMs.

Dual-Port RAM Portfolio
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Figure 7. In 1999, we put a lot of effort into expanding our Dual-Port memo-
ries for data-communications applications. These are high-performance
niche products that do not fluctuate significantly in price during a recession.
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Figure 8. The next step in switching data is the QuadPort™ RAM (see die
photo, inside back cover). The memory serves as a “mail box” where large
amounts of data can be stored and/or retrieved quickly from four different
ports. This memory functions as a data switch.

Datacom Revenue
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Figure 9. Revenue from our datacom division increased 35% in 1999 and
will easily exceed $200 million in 2000.

COMPUTER PRODUCTS DIVISION (CPD)

This fast-growing division benefited most from acquisi-
tions in 1999. Our Computer Products Division was
formed when we acquired the Seattle-based frequency
timing generator (“clock”) company, I.C. Designs, in
1993. We built that business from $15 million to $67 mil-
lion per year over the next five years. IC Works was a
San Jose-based clock company equal in size to our inter-
nal division when we acquired it last year. We merged
our business with theirs and expect the combined busi-
nesses to exceed $175 million in revenue this year.

The Seattle team also invented our Universal Serial Bus
(USB) chip, a major success for us in 1999.



We became the world leader in USB in 1999 through
both internal growth and acquisition. We developed inter-
nally the chips for connecting the mouse, keyboard, joy-
stick, printer, and fax to the PC, as well as an “extension
cord” hub chip, and a combination hub-keyboard chip.

Universal Serial Bus (USB)

STANDARD USB
4-WIRE CABLE

Figure 10. The concept of the USB is to make communications between a
personal computer and its peripherals very simple (so-called “plug and
play”), using a common, cheap, four-wire cable to connect, and intelligent
cable-termination devices (USB chips) to provide automatic recognition that
a peripheral has been connected.

As Figure 11 shows (below), the USB data connections
on a PC have become very specialized, requiring many
different USB chips (see photo, inside back cover). When
we realized that fact, we sought a partner to help us create
the complete family of USB chips quickly. In Q299, we
acquired Anchor Chips, headquartered in San Diego,
which specializes in USB chips for high-speed PC
peripherals (digital cameras, for example, which move a
lot of data quickly) and PC peripherals needing an unin-
terrupted data flow, such as video and audio. Their new-
est chip, EZ-USB FX™, has already achieved major
design wins in digital subscriber line (DSL) modems
(Analog Devices, 3Com, Alcatel), home networking
(HPNA, 3Com), and the new MPEG2 record-playback
devices (C-Cube, Digital Video), as well as other high-
performance applications from Lucent and Cisco.

USB: Family Required
10 Ports, 8 Different Chips
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Figure 11. USB has evolved into a complicated datacom system for personal
computers precisely because it makes complicated things simple for users.
Our low-cost family of mouse chips meets our customers’ price targets, but
does not have enough inputs to connect a keyboard, which may or may not
have hub functionality. Speakers need a slow but uninterrupted data flow,
while cameras need a high-speed data flow. This hypothetical USB PC has
10 ports which, in turn, need eight different chips. Cypress-developed chips
have a “CY” designation and Anchor Chips products an “AN” designation.

USB Unit Shipments Soar
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Figure 12. Cypress’s USB family has grown from very low sales to an annu-
alized rate of $50 million in 1999, and a targeted $100 million in 2000.

PROGRAMMABLE PRODUCTS DIVISION (PPD)

In the 1998 letter to shareholders, we introduced a new
family of complex programmable logic devices,
Ultra37000™ CPLDs. The family has been well received
and is producing design wins for us at record rates.

The next step for the PLD group is to deliver the
Delta39K™ CPLD family, which I described in last
year’s shareholder letter. We were expecting silicon in
Q499; it will now happen in Q200. The Delta39K™ is a
monumental project, the biggest CPLD ever designed,
with the most memory, requiring 79 man-years of effort.

CPLD Design Wins
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Figure 13. Cypress’s CPLD design wins are at record levels. In our account-
ing system, a design win is not declared until it has produced significant rev-
enue. The latency period from design win to revenue is three to five quarters.




MEMORY PRODUCTS DIVISION

MPD achieved its objective of profitability without sig-
nificant increases in commodity asynchronous SRAM
pricing (Figure 2) by significantly shifting its revenue
base away from commodity asynchronous SRAMs to
two types of new memories: MoBL™ (More Battery
Life™) SRAMs with ultra-low power (see inside back
cover) and synchronous SRAMs, the memories of choice
for data communications hardware. In addition, MPD
dramatically reduced its cost on the remaining asynchro-
nous SRAMs by shrinking them down in size, and there-
fore cost, according to Moore’s Law (see inside front
cover).

The big accomplishment by MPD, however, was not the
shrinks, however appealing they are to an engineer like
me, but to become profitable by shifting more than 50%
of its revenue to datacom-oriented products in only three
years.

Our MoBL SRAMs have been a very successful diversi-
fication vehicle for us, because mobile phones are
becoming portable, high-powered systems, requiring
ever more memory. Cell phones once were able to “get
along” with only a 256-Kbit memory. Now, 2-Mbit
memories are common, 4-Mbit memories are ramping in
volume, and customers are starting to evaluate 8-Mbit
devices (see MoBL family photo, inside back cover). The
push for more memory in cell phones is driven by the
transmission of data over the cell phone, and the use of
more complex DSP algorithms to compress, decode, and
encrypt voice and data. There is also a big push for lower
voltage, ultralow standby power and low active power
(long “talk time”), an area where MoBL outperforms all
competitors significantly. The net result is 36 MoBL/cell
phone design wins (see back cover) and very rapid
growth.

MoBL Revenue Ramp
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Figure 14. MoBL revenue grew dramatically in 1999 and will continue to
grow in 2000, partly because of contracts already in place.

In 1996 we also launched an effort to build synchronous
memories for datacom appliances. These memories are
required to be big and fast, and have high bandwidth. In
the commodity asynchronous world, customers ask,
“How cheap is your SRAM per bit?” In the synchronous
(datacom) world, the most common SRAM questions
are:

*  How many gigabits per second can move through
your memory (bandwidth)?

*  How long must data stay in your memory before it
can be moved to its destination (latency)?

* Is your memory big enough to hold a lot of data,
(density), and

* Is your memory fast?

We were gaining ground in the technology-driven syn-
chronous memory arena when we identified and acquired
Galvantech, a company that specializes in datacom mem-
ories. Galvantech’s synchronous memories are the big-
gest and fastest in the world (8 Mbits, 225 MHz). In
addition, Galvantech brought to our portfolio NetRAM®
(a special architecture for switches and routers) and
DSPRAM® (a special architecture to support DSP pro-
cessors). The Galvantech acquisition has doubled our
synchronous datacom memory revenue.

Datacom Memory Shift
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Figure 15. In 1996, the first year of the semiconductor price recession,
Cypress shipped almost 100% commodity asynchronous memories. But
things have changed: Our new MoBL and synchronous datacom memories
now comprise half of our business. The graph also shows Q499 restated as if
Galvantech revenues had been consolidated, showing a doubling of synchro-
nous datacom memory sales.

Thus, despite impressive progress shrinking chips and
improving profit margins in the commodity SRAM busi-
ness, the important news from our Memory Products
Division is Cypress’s economic shift—out of commodity
SRAMs and into a datacom-rich portfolio of products.



Eliminating Commodity SRAMs
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Figure 16. In 1996, over half of Cypress’s sales were commodity asynchro-
nous SRAMs. Today, the percentage is under 20%, and those are shipped
predominantly to Cypress’s strategic accounts on a contractual basis.

CONCLUSION

We planned for—and earned—our good results in 1999.
The robust upturn in the semiconductor industry in 1999
was a bonus for Cypress and its sharcholders. We are
proud of our speedy effort to retarget Cypress’s product
portfolio toward data communications.

Every building at Cypress posts our mission statement,
which calls for $1 billion in sales and $250 million in
pre-tax profits. We plan to achieve those goals in the year
2000.

T.J. Rodgers
President and CEO




CORPORATE PROFILE

Cypress Semiconductor Corporation, now in its second decade, provides a broad range of high-performance integrated
circuits to leading networking, telecommunications, and computer companies worldwide. With a focus on emerging
communications applications, the Company’s product line includes static random access memories (SRAMs) and
SRAM modules, specialty memories (first-in first-out, or FIFO, memories, and dual-port RAMs), programmable logic
devices (PLDs) and PLD design tools, data communications products (for ATM, SONET, and very-high-speed
serial/parallel links), clock and timing devices, and Universal Serial Bus (USB) microcontrollers. Cypress is No. 1 in the
USB and clock chip markets.

More than two-thirds of Cypress’s sales come from datacom/telecom markets and dynamic companies such Alcatel,
Cisco, Ericsson, Lucent, Motorola, Nortel Networks, and3Com. Cypress’s ability to mix and match its broad portfolio of
intellectual property enables targeted, integrated solutions for high-speed systems that feed bandwidth-hungry Internet
applications. Cypress aims to become the preferred silicon supplier for Internet switching systems and for every Internet
data stream to pass through at least one Cypress IC.

Cypress markets its products through direct sales offices in North America, Europe, and Asia and a worldwide network
of distributors and sales representatives. In 1999 exports accounted for 49% of total revenues.

Cypress manufactures its products at wafer manufacturing plants in California, Minnesota, and Texas. The Company
operates an advanced test-and-assembly facility in the Philippines.

Cypress was founded in 1982 and is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol CY. Corporate headquar-
ters are located in San Jose, California. Company information can be accessed on the worldwide web at
http://www.cypress.com/.

The Letter to Shareholders, the 1999 Annual Report cover, and “Management's Discussion and Analysis” may contain forward-looking
statements about the prospects for Cypress as well as the semiconductor industry more generally including without limitation stéeements
about increases in gross margin, rate of growth of research and development expenditures as a percent of revenues, rate of growh of selling,
general and administrative expenses, profitability goals, revenue goals, growth rate goals, market share goals, market size andgrowth projec-
tions, new product introductions, planned manufacturing capacity, and efficiency and cost goals. Actual results could differ matrially from
those described in the forward-looking statements as a result of various factors including, but not limited to, the factors idetified in the Let-
ter to Shareholders, the 1999 Annual Report cover, and the Management's Discussion and Analysis section, particularly “Factors Afecting

Future Results,” as well as the following:

(1) increased competition which could result in lost sales or price erosion;

(2) changes in product demand by the electronics and semiconductor industries, which are noted for rapidly changing needs, coupled vith
an inability by Cypress to generate product enhancements or new product introductions which keep pace with or meet those rapidly
changing needs;

(3) failure by Cypress to develop or introduce successfully new products in areas of expected new or increased demand, or developmenand
introduction of superior new products serving those areas by others;

(4) failure of expected growth in demand for, or areas of expected new demand for, semiconductor products to materialize;

(5) failure to successfully bring on line and utilize additional manufacturing capacity, or to transition existing capacity to new ses;

(6) inability to develop and/or adopt more advanced manufacturing technology;

(7) inability of Cypress’s patents or other proprietary rights to ensure adequate protection against encroachment on Cypress’s technlogy by
competitors; and

(8) failure to attract and/or retain key personnel.

Cypress employees produced this report to provide the maximum amount of useful information on the Company in an accessible form, at a minimum of cost.

We appreciate their time and effort.

HOTLink, DSPRAM, NetRAM, and RoboClock are registered trademarks and Cypress, Cypress Semiconductor, the Cypress logotype, Delta 39K, EZ-USB
FX, MoBL, MoBL2, More Battery Life, QDR, QuadPort, Quad Data Rate, and Ultra37000 are trademarks of Cypress Semiconductor Corpor ation.

Other names may be service marks or trademarks of their respective holders and may be registered in certain jurisdictions.

Customer photographs used in this report were provided by EMC, Ericsson, IBM, Lucent Technology, Mitsubishi, Mitsumi, Motorola, Nortel Networks, Philips,
and Storage Tek, and are used by permission. The product names are trademarks or registered trademarks of the respective compani es.




Selected Consolidated Financial Data

(In thousands, except per-share data)

(Unaudited)
1999 1998 1997 1996 1995
For the year:
Revenues $ 705,487 $ 554,891 § 598,485 $ 569,941 $ 636,108
Acquisition-related
non-recurring charges, net 37,623 - - - -
Restructuring costs (benefits) (3,811) 60,737 9,882 10,932 17,800
Operating income (loss) 52,823 (120,521) 8,508 54,110 162,966
Income (loss) before tax 95,871 (118,441) 13,139 55,584 164,201
Net income (loss) 91,054 (104,918) 7,526 25,108 104,995
Net income (loss) per share:
Basic $ 087 § (1.03) $ 0.08 $ 0.28 $ 1.18
Diluted $ 081 3 (1.03) $ 0.07 $ 0.26 $ 1.02
Weighted average common
and common equivalent
shares outstanding:
Basic 104,703 101,944 100,137 90,247 89,321
Diluted 111,735 101,944 107,866 95,555 106,253
At year-end:
Cash, cash equivalents and
short-term investments $ 270,556 $ 160,561 $ 203,870 $ 95,699 $ 165,363
Working capital 344,630 236,081 309,661 125,746 195,131
Total assets 1,117,224 823,996 978,466 834,931 791,491

Long-term debt and other
long-term obligation
(excluding current portion) 226,484 211,305 224,412 135,266 123,171

Stockholders’ equity 697,975 498,723 644,632 512,116 492,394




Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Operations and
Financial Condition

This report may contain forward-looking statements, within the meaning of Section 27A of the
Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, about the pros-
pects for Cypress as well as the semiconductor industry more generally, including without limita-
tion, statements about increases in gross margin, rate of growth of research and development
expenditures as a percent of revenues, rate of growth of selling, general and administrative
expenses, profitability goals, revenue goals, growth rate goals, market share goals, market size and
growth projections, new product introductions, planned manufacturing capacity, and efficiency and
cost goals. Actual results could differ materially from those described in the forward-looking state-
ments as a result of various factors including, but not limited to, the factors identified in the Letter
to Shareholders and the Management’s Discussion and Analysis section, particularly “Factors
Affecting Future Results,” as well as the following:

1. increased competition which could result in lost sales or price erosion;

2. changes in product demand by the electronics and semiconductor industries, which are noted
for rapidly changing needs, coupled with an inability by Cypress to generate product enhance-
ments or new product introductions which keep pace with or meet those rapidly changing
needs;

3. failure by Cypress to develop or introduce successfully new products in areas of expected new
or increased demand, or development and introduction of superior new products serving those
areas by others;

4. failure of expected growth in demand for, or areas of expected new demand for, semiconductor
products to materialize;

5. failure to successfully bring on line and utilize additional manufacturing capacity, or to transi-
tion existing capacity to new uses;

inability to develop and/or adopt more advanced manufacturing technology;

inability of Cypress’s patents or other proprietary rights to ensure adequate protection against
encroachment on Cypress’s technology by competitors; and

8. failure to attract and/or retain key personnel.

Overview

Revenues for Cypress increased 27.1% to $705.5 million in fiscal 1999 from $554.9 million in fis-
cal 1998. Net income for fiscal 1999 was $91.1 million compared to a net loss of $104.9 million in
fiscal 1998. The net loss for fiscal 1998 included a restructuring charge of $60.7 million and other
non-recurring charges totaling $27.3 million. Excluding the restructuring and non-recurring
charges, the net loss for fiscal 1998 was $26.9 million. Cypress earned $0.81 per share, on a diluted
basis, during fiscal 1999 compared to a diluted net loss of $1.03 per share in fiscal 1998.

On March 2, 2000, Cypress completed the merger with Galvantech, Inc. (“Galvantech”), which
will be accounted for as a pooling of interests. The agreement provides for Cypress to issue up to
3.6 million shares in exchange for all outstanding stock and options of Galvantech. The fiscal years
of Cypress and Galvantech were different and Galvantech has changed its fiscal periods to coincide
with that of Cypress. Galvantech specializes in niche, ultra-high performance memories for data
communications applications.

On January 31, 2000, Cypress filed a universal shelf registration statement with the Securities and
Exchange Commission. The registration statement which was effective February 8, 2000 will allow
Cypress to market and sell up to $400.0 million of its securities. The shelf registration statement
allows Cypress flexibility to raise funds from the offering of debt securities, common stock, or a
combination thereof, subject to market conditions and Cypress’s capital needs.

On January 19, 2000, Cypress completed a $283.0 million registered-placement of 5-year convert-
ible subordinated notes. The notes are due in the year 2005, with a coupon rate of 4.00% and an ini-
tial conversion premium of 28.5%. The notes are convertible into approximately 6.1 million shares
of common stock and are callable by Cypress no earlier than February 5, 2003. Net proceeds were
$275.2 million, after issuance costs of $7.8 million.




On October 5, 1999, Cypress announced that it had signed a definitive agreement with Altera Cor-
poration (“Altera”) to acquire Altera’s MAX 5000 Programmable Logic Device (“PLD”) product
line and its equity interest in Cypress’s wafer fabrication facility in Round Rock, Texas (“Fab I1”)
for approximately $13.0 million in cash. The acquisition has been accounted for as a purchase. In
1988, Altera licensed its MAX 5000 family of products to Cypress in consideration of manufactur-
ing capacity. Altera later acquired a 17% equity interest in the Round Rock wafer fabrication facil-
ity. By acquiring Altera’s equity interest in October 1999, Fab 11 is now 100% owned by Cypress.

On June 30, 1999, Cypress acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of Arcus Technology
(USA), Inc. and the assets of Arcus Technology (India) Limited (referred to collectively as
“Arcus”). Arcus specializes in new data communications arenas including dense wave multiplexing
(which allows multiple signals to be transmitted over a single fiber-optic cable) and “IP over
SONET” (the technology needed to code and decode Internet traffic to send it over the telephone
system). The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase and the estimated fair value of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed were included in Cypress’s consolidated balance sheet as of June
30, 1999, the effective date of the purchase. The results of operations were included from the date
of purchase. Cypress acquired Arcus for $17.7 million, including cash of $11.5 million and stock of
$6.2 million, excluding direct acquisition costs of $0.8 million for legal and accounting fees.

On May 25, 1999, Cypress acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of Anchor Chips, Inc.
(“Anchor”), a company that designs and markets microcontroller chips to support the Universal
Serial Bus. The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase and the estimated fair value of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed were included in Cypress’s consolidated financial statements as of
May 25, 1999, the effective date of the purchase. The results of operations were included from the
date of purchase. Cypress paid approximately $15.0 million in cash excluding direct acquisition
costs of $0.7 million for investment banking, legal and accounting fees.

On April 1, 1999, Cypress completed a merger with IC WORKS Incorporated (“ICW”), which was
accounted for as a pooling of interests. The consolidated financial statements and the notes to the
consolidated financial statements give effect to the merger for all periods presented. The fiscal
years of Cypress and ICW were different. ICW has changed its fiscal year-end to coincide with that
of Cypress. Cypress’s consolidated statements of operations for the periods ended January 3, 1999
and December 27, 1997, have been combined with ICW’s consolidated statements of operations for
the corresponding twelve month periods ended December 28, 1998 and March 28, 1998. During
fiscal 1999, Cypress recorded merger-related transaction costs of $3.7 million related to the acqui-
sition of ICW. These charges, which consist primarily of investment banking and other professional
fees, have been included under acquisition and merger costs in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations.

Results of Operations
Revenues

Revenues for fiscal 1999 were $705.5 million, an increase of $150.6 million or 27.1% versus reve-
nues for fiscal 1998, and an increase of $107.0 million or 17.9% compared to revenues for fiscal
1997. Cypress derives its revenues from the sale of Memory Products and Non-memory Products,
primarily targeted to the data communications and computation markets.

Revenues from the sale of Memory Products for 1999 increased $73.8 million or 37.6% over reve-
nues from the sale of these products for fiscal 1998 and increased $43.1 million, or 19.0% com-
pared to fiscal 1997. From fiscal 1998 to fiscal 1999, sales of Static Random Access Memories
products (“SRAM”) grew $74.9 million or 40.3%. Revenues from SRAMSs during fiscal 1999
increased $52.3 million or 25.1% compared to fiscal 1997. The increase in Memory Product reve-
nues, as compared to fiscal 1998, resulted from both higher average selling prices (“ASPs”) and an
increase in unit sales. ASPs grew 16.7% from fiscal 1998 to fiscal 1999 and unit sales increased
17.9% over the same period. The increase in unit sales in fiscal 1999 can be attributed to new prod-
uct revenues, particularly in the 4-Meg synchronous, the No Bus Latency (“NoBL”), the 2-Meg
More Battery Life (“MoBL”) and the 1-Meg x16 micropower family of products. The synchronous
and NoBL demand was driven by the surge in the networking market, while sales for MoBL and
micropower were driven by the cellular phone market. Unit sales volume of Memory Products
increased 16.2% comparing fiscal 1999 to fiscal 1997, while ASPs remained relatively constant.
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Non-memory Products include programmable logic products, data communication devices, com-
puter products and non-volatile memory products. Non-memory products also include foundry rev-
enues. Foundry revenue represents sales of wafers to customers. Revenues from the sale of Non-
memory Products increased $76.8 million or 21.4% comparing fiscal 1999 to fiscal 1998 and $63.9
million, or 17.2% compared to fiscal 1997. The increase in revenues related primarily to the sale of
computer products, which include programmable clock products and universal serial bus (“USB”)
products, and from the sale of data communication devices.

In fiscal 1999, revenues from the sale of computer products increased $54.7 million, or 36.9% and
$86.5 million, or 74.2%, respectively, compared to fiscal 1998 and fiscal 1997, respectively. The
revenue growth in programmable clocks can be attributed to higher unit sales, primarily as a result
of the introduction of the BX clock chip in 1999 and greater acceptance of other clock products.
Also in fiscal 1999, revenues for USB products grew, in comparison to fiscal 1998 and 1997, pri-
marily as a result of an increase in the adoption rate of USB products in the market place, particu-
larly in the personal computer market. USB revenues in fiscal 1999 also benefited from the
acquisition of Anchor in May 1999. ASPs remained relatively stable comparing fiscal 1999 to fis-
cal 1998.

Revenues generated from the sale of data communication devices in fiscal 1999 increased $22.7
million or 18.3% compared to fiscal 1998 and $20.0 million, or 15.8% compared to fiscal 1997.
The revenue growth in fiscal 1999 was the result of higher unit sales as units sold in fiscal 1999
increased 20.0% and 18.9% compared to fiscal 1998 and fiscal 1997, respectively. Data communi-
cation’s revenue growth can be attributed to their ability to align themselves with several key cus-
tomers in the Storage Area Network, Local Area Network and Wide Area Network markets.
Contributions were primarily from the 1-Megabit Dual-Port Ram, HOTLink Transceivers and
RoboClock Skew Clock Buffer family of products. The increase in unit sales more than offset the
minimal decline in ASPs, comparing the same periods.

Revenues from the sale of programmable logic products in fiscal year 1999 increased $3.3 million
or 7.9% compared to fiscal 1998, however, decreasing $14.7 million or 24.8% compared to fiscal
1997. In fiscal 1999, revenues increased, compared to fiscal 1998, due to the ramp up of sales in the
37K and FLASH family of products. The revenue growth in the 37K and FLASH family of prod-
ucts more than offset declining sales in the more mature MAX and Small PLD family of products.
Non-volatile memory product revenues remained relatively constant in fiscal 1999 decreasing $0.8
million compared to fiscal 1998. In 1997, Cypress decided to cease selling certain non-volatile
memory devices, Erasable Programmable Read-only Memory (“EPROM?”). As a result, the sale of
non-volatile memory products decreased $13.1 million or 31.7% from fiscal 1999 to fiscal 1997.

As is typical in the semiconductor industry, ASPs of products generally decline over the lifetime of
the products. To increase revenues, Cypress seeks to expand its market share in the markets it cur-
rently serves and to introduce and sell new products with higher ASPs. Cypress will seek to remain
competitive with respect to its pricing to prevent a further decline in sales.

Cost of Revenues

Cost of revenues for fiscal 1999 were 54.4% of revenues, compared to 73.7% of revenues for fiscal
1998 and 65.8% of revenues during fiscal 1997. The decrease in cost of revenues as a percent of
revenues was primarily due to a significant increase in unit sales, resulting in lower fixed cost per
unit sold and the introduction of new products with higher margins. In order to offset the decrease
in ASPs, Cypress must continue to find ways to lower manufacturing costs and introduce new
products with higher margins in order to remain competitive in the marketplace.

Cost of revenues for fiscal 1998 included one-time non-recurring charges totaling $21.7 million.
These charges included $15.8 million related to the write-down of inventory, $3.8 million for the
write-off of pre-operating costs and $2.1 million for the write-off of certain equipment. The $15.8
million charge for incremental inventory reserves arose due to market conditions resulting in the
ongoing, over-supply and continued inventory corrections by end-user customers.

The write-off of pre-operating costs included $2.9 million related to Cypress’s wafer fabrication
operation in Bloomington, Minnesota and $0.9 million related to its assembly and test operations in
the Philippines. As a result of the restructuring activities, Cypress wrote off its previously capital-
ized pre-operating costs as an impaired asset due to uncertainties surrounding their future economic




benefits. The pre-operating costs totaling $3.8 million, net of accumulated amortization were
included in other assets at December 29, 1997.

The write-off of equipment was related to equipment identified as obsolete during Cypress’s peri-
odic review of equipment and no longer considered usable. Excluding these one-time non-recurring
charges, cost of revenues as a percent of revenues for fiscal 1998 would have been 69.8%.

Cypress continues to introduce new products and new methods of reducing manufacturing costs in
order to mitigate the effects of declining ASPs on its gross margin. In March 1998, Cypress
announced restructuring activities for its domestic wafer fabrication facilities and offshore back-
end manufacturing operations. Activities completed to date have increased Cypress’s manufactur-
ing efficiencies and as a result, its gross margin has been increasing since the first quarter of fiscal
1998. Cypress expects to benefit from these restructuring activities in the future.

Research and Development

Research and development (“R&D”) expenditures for fiscal 1999 were $129.3 million or 18.3% of
revenues, compared with $114.6 million or 20.6% of revenues for fiscal 1998 and $104.3 million or
17.4% of revenues for fiscal 1997. R&D expenditures in fiscal 1999 increased $14.8 million or
12.9% compared to fiscal 1998 and $25.0 million or 24.0% compared to fiscal 1997. R&D expendi-
tures increased from fiscal 1997 through fiscal 1999 as Cypress continued its effort to accelerate the
development of new products and migrate to more advanced process technologies. In 1999, spend-
ing in Cypress’s design centers grew due to increased headcount and additional spending from
design centers acquired with the purchase of Arcus and Anchor. During 1998, Cypress began utiliz-
ing the 0.25-micron process technology for manufacturing purposes, and in 1999, started develop-
ment of 0.16-micron process technologies. Cypress believes that its future success will depend on
its ability to develop and introduce new products that will compete effectively on the basis of price
and performance, and will address customer needs. In fiscal 2000, Cypress is expecting to continue
to increase spending in R&D in order to improve its design and process technologies in an effort to
increase revenues and reduce costs. As part of this effort, in fiscal 2000, Cypress expects to com-
plete the conversation its San Jose R&D wafer fab from a six-inch facility into an eight-inch facil-
ity. This will make Cypress’s R&D fab more compatible with its technologically advanced wafer
fabs in Minnesota. This conversion is expected to be completed in June 2000.

Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A”) expenses for fiscal 1999 were $105.9 million or
15.0% of revenues, compared to $91.0 million or 16.4% of revenues for fiscal 1998 and $82.0 mil-
lion or 13.7% of revenues for fiscal 1997. SG&A expenses for fiscal 1999 increased by $14.9 mil-
lion or 16.3% as compared to fiscal 1998 and by $23.9 million or 29.1% when compared to fiscal
1997. SG&A spending increased from fiscal 1997 to fiscal 1998 and from fiscal 1998 to fiscal 1999
principally because of higher sales and marketing expenditures related to salesmen and rep com-
missions, a new sales force training program and higher marketing communication expenditures. In
fiscal 1999, Cypress also incurred higher legal costs, primarily associated with its successful
defense of the EMI patent infringement lawsuit. With the exception of variable spending, such as
incentive bonuses, salary adjustments and commissions, Cypress expects to keep SG&A spending
as a percent of revenues relatively constant in fiscal 2000.

1999 Restructuring, Merger and Acquisition, and Other Non-Recurring Costs

During fiscal 1999, Cypress recorded a net $33.8 million in restructuring, merger and acquisition,
and other non-recurring costs. These one-time, non-recurring costs included a $12.3 million write-
off of a certain manufacturing asset that will not be utilized and an $11.9 million one-time compen-
sation charge. In the first quarter of fiscal 1999, Cypress recorded one-time charges of $3.7 million
associated with the merger with IC Works. These charges were for investment banking fees and
other professional fees. Cypress also recorded $8.8 million in costs associated with the purchase of
Anchor and Arcus comprised of $4.0 million for in-process technology, $1.6 million for transaction
costs and $3.2 million in amortization of intangible assets. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 1999,
Cypress acquired Altera’s MAX 5000 Programmable Logic Device (“PLD”) product line and its
equity interest in Cypress’s wafer fabrication facility in Round Rock, Texas. As part of the transac-
tion, Cypress recorded intangible assets associated with the product rights and incurred $0.3 million
for the amortization of these intangibles. These non-recurring charges were offset by a reversal of
$3.1 million of the 1998 restructuring reserve. The reversed charges related to $2.2 million of sev-
erance and other employee related charges and $0.3 million for the provision for phase-down and
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completion of the Alphatec restructuring activities. Cypress also reversed $0.5 million of the 1998
restructuring reserve for other fixed asset related charges that were no longer considered necessary.
During fiscal 1999, Cypress reversed $0.7 million of the 1996 restructuring reserve related to fixed
asset de-installation charges that were no longer required.

1998 Restructuring and Other Non-recurring Costs

During 1998, Cypress implemented an overall cost reduction plan and recorded a $58.9 million
restructuring reserve. The restructuring entailed:

* The shutdown of Fab 3, located in Bloomington, Minnesota and consolidation of parts of Fab
3 operations with other operations of Cypress.

* The discontinuance of the 0.6-micron 256k SRAM production in Fab 2 located in Texas.

» The conversion of an existing research and development fab located in San Jose (Fab 1) to
eight-inch capability in order to be compatible with the state-of-the-art eight-inch Minnesota
manufacturing facility.

» The transfer of Cypress’s test operations from its subcontractor, Alphatec, in Thailand to
Cypress’s production facility in the Philippines.

» The restructuring activities described above include the termination of approximately 850
manufacturing employees primarily from Cypress and Alphatec.

FAB 3 — The charge related to the shutdown of Fab 3 was $30.2 million. Of this amount, $26.0
million related to the write-down of equipment held for sale, $1.7 million of other fixed asset
related charges for incremental third party costs expected to be incurred in the eventual physical
removal of the written down assets, $1.1 million related to severance and other employee related
costs and $1.4 million related to inventory.

Fab 3 assets that were not upgradable to 8-inch capability were written down based on the esti-
mated useful lives of the assets and the salvage value of the assets. The estimated useful lives were
generally two months as a result of the decision to discontinue production in Fab 3 and the salvage
value was determined based on the estimated sales value of used semiconductor equipment. Non-
upgradable Fab 3 assets were depreciated down to their salvage value during the production phase-
down period. Fab 3 assets that were upgradable to 8-inch capability were transferred to Fab 4 pro-
duction during the third quarter of 1998.

In accordance with the restructuring plan, Fab 3 production was phased down beginning in the sec-
ond quarter of 1998 and ceased in July 1998. From this time, Cypress has held the non-upgradable
equipment for sale. As of January 2, 2000, some of the equipment still has not been sold. Cypress
expects to recover the originally determined salvage value for such equipment, however, no assur-
ance can be given as to the amount of proceeds that will ultimately be collected.

FAB 2 — The decision to discontinue manufacturing SRAM products on Cypress’s 0.6-micron
256K SRAM process in Texas resulted in excess equipment and employee redundancy. Charges
with this decision totaled $21.3 million, of which $18.0 million related to the write-down of equip-
ment, $0.3 million related to the write-down of inventory, $1.7 million related to severance and
other employee-related costs and $1.3 million of other fixed asset related charges for incremental
third-party costs for the physical removal of the written down assets and the resolution of certain
related tax matters.

Excess equipment in Fab 2 was written down based on the useful lives of the assets and the esti-
mated salvage value of the assets. Cypress had the ability and intention to sell all the equipment
immediately but due to the semiconductor industry slow-down, Cypress recognized immediate sale
of the equipment would be difficult. The equipment was kept in the fab, ready for demonstration
and testing by a willing buyer. Cypress used the equipment during the production phase-down
period through May 1998.

As of January 2, 2000, some of this equipment remains on hand. Cypress expects to recover the
originally determined salvage value for such equipment, however, no assurance can be given as to
the amount of proceeds that will ultimately be collected.

FAB 1 and San Jose Operations — The restructuring plan included the upgrade of Fab 1 to an
eight-inch facility to ensure compatibility with Cypress’s Fab 4 manufacturing facility in Minne-
sota. Fab 1 is used for research and development purposes. The plan assumed commencement of
Fab 1 restructuring activities during the middle of 1998 with completion by the end of January




1999. The plan included the disposal and write-down of six-inch manufacturing equipment that was
not upgradable to eight-inch capability. The remaining net book value of such assets was written off
over the estimated useful life through January 1999. Incremental depreciation charges, to reflect the
revised useful lives of this equipment, were included in research and development costs for 1998
and January 1999. Cypress also reserved $1.0 million to write-down the value of certain other
equipment and reserved $1.3 million related to severance and other employee-related costs. In fis-
cal 2000, Cypress expects to convert its San Jose R&D wafer fab from a six-inch facility into an
eight-inch facility. This will make Cypress’s R&D fab more compatible with its technologically
advanced wafer fabs in Minnesota. This conversion is expected to be completed in June 2000.

ALPHATEC — Cypress reserved $5.1 million to provide for the consolidation of Thailand test
activities from Alphatec, Cypress’s subcontractor, with Cypress’s Philippines facility. Of this $5.1
million reserve, $1.5 million was related to production inventories which were no longer usable as
a result of this consolidation, $1.3 million was related to severance costs at the subcontractor and
$2.3 million was related to excess equipment and leasehold improvements which were no longer
used. The assets were considered held for sale and were written down to their revised carrying
value. The transfer of production from Alphatec to the Philippines facility began during the second
quarter of 1998 and was completed in January 1999, one month later than originally planned.

OTHER — Separate from the restructuring charge, Cypress recorded an additional charge of $27.3
million, which was recorded as operating expenses. The charges were for inventory reserves ($15.8
million), the write-off of pre-operating costs ($3.8 million), the write-off of an equity investment
($3.1 million), costs incurred to reimburse a customer for expenses incurred as a consequence of
Cypress’s defective products ($2.5 million) and the write-off of obsolete equipment in Fab 4 ($2.1
million). The write-down of inventory was made to establish incremental reserves for excess inven-
tory and was recorded as cost of revenues.

The write-off of pre-operating costs included $2.9 million related to Cypress’s wafer fabrication
operation in Bloomington, Minnesota and $0.9 million related to its assembly and test operation in
the Philippines. As a result of restructuring activities, Cypress wrote off its previously capitalized
pre-operating costs as an impaired asset due to uncertainties surrounding their future economic ben-
efits and accordingly the costs were written off to cost of sales. There were no capitalized pre-oper-
ating costs subsequent to the first quarter of 1998.

The $3.1 million write-off of the investment was recorded against net interest and other income to
reflect the decline in the value of a certain investment. Selling, general and administrative costs
included the write-off of $2.5 million in costs incurred to reimburse a customer for certain product
expenses incurred. During Cypress’s periodic review of equipment, some equipment was identified
as obsolete and $2.1 million was charged to cost of sales to write-off the obsolete equipment.

1997 Restructuring Costs - Cypress (ICW)

In fiscal 1997, Maxim Integrated Products, Inc. (“Maxim”) agreed to purchase wafer fabrication
assets from Cypress and its Fab Partners to purchase certain equipment from Cypress lessors
thereby relieving Cypress of significant future equipment lease obligations. Maxim also acquired
the property that housed the fab from Samsung Semiconductor, Inc. as part of the same transaction.
The remaining assets to be disposed at the end of fiscal year 1997 were liquidated between April
1998 and June 1998 (including at an equipment auction in June 1998). Due to the lack of any mean-
ingful sale of assets at the June auction, the actual liquidation of substantially all of the remaining
assets was completed in November 1998. In May 1998, Maxim purchased approximately $0.5 mil-
lion of the assets to be disposed of in another asset sale transaction separate from the November
1997 transaction.

Cypress entered into the following material agreements related to the sale of its fab assets to Maxim
in November 1997:

1. Asset purchase agreements — related to the purchase of assets from each of the respective
owners of assets (Fab Partners, lessors, and Cypress.) The loss incurred by the Company as a
result of these agreements is included as part of the restructuring costs in the accompanying
financial statements.

2. Loan agreement — related to a loan by Maxim to Cypress in the amount of $2.0 million.
Recorded as long-term debt in March 1998 and is payable at the earlier of an IPO, change in
control, or four years.
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3. Foundry agreement — related to Cypress agreement for Maxim to provide BiCMOS foundry
services to Cypress. This agreement terminated in December 1998. No effect on financials.

4. Operating agreement — related to sharing of the fab between Cypress and Maxim for a period
of up to seven months from close (actual duration was four months). Specifics of the agree-
ments include how costs are shared, who has control and when the fab transfers sequentially
from Cypress to Maxim, the basis for one party billing the other for its manufacturing activi-
ties within the fab during the period of sharing the fab, and an agreement with Maxim that they
will hire substantially all the wafer fab-related employees based on a prescribed schedule. The
operating agreement was substantially completed in March 1998.

Cypress and Maxim also entered into an operating agreement that outlined the utilization of and
cost-sharing for the facility during the six-month transition period following the sale of the fab
assets to Maxim.

While Maxim had acquired most of Cypress owned and leased fab assets and certain related assets,
Cypress still owned or leased other wafer fabrication assets that were not purchased by Maxim. As
such, in connection with the exit of the wafer fabrication business, Cypress recorded a restructure
charge of approximately $9.9 million related to impairment of assets sold to Maxim ($2.2 million),
impairment of assets held for sale ($1.8 million), refinancing of lease agreements ($3.6 million),
employee severance ($0.2 million), and other transaction costs ($2.2 million). These agreements
with Maxim resulted in a reduction of headcount of approximately 113 foundry employees (most of
whom were hired by Maxim). The total expected cash outlay related to this charge was approxi-
mately $6.7 million at December 29, 1997, of which the remaining $4.1 million was paid in 1999.

In November 1997, Cypress also borrowed $2.0 million from Maxim with interest accruing at 6%
per annum. The note and interest are to be repaid at the earlier of: a majority sale of Cypress, the
consummation of a public offering of Cypress common stock, or four years from the date of the
note (November 2001). In addition, Cypress entered into a wafer purchase agreement with Maxim
that allows Cypress to buy BICMOS wafers from Maxim for a period of up to two years.

On the closing date of the transaction, November 20, 1997, Maxim purchased Cypress six-inch
wafer fabrication leasehold improvements and manufacturing equipment as well as certain five-
inch wafer fabrication equipment, which Cypress owned or acquired through capital leases. The
carrying value of the six-inch and five-inch fabrication assets were $14.25 million and $0.4 million,
respectively. Proceeds of the sale of these assets to Maxim were $12.5 million to Cypress. Substan-
tially all the assets held at December 29, 1997 were sold prior to January 3, 1999.

Interest Expense

Interest expense was $9.6 million for fiscal 1999, compared to $11.3 million for fiscal 1998 and
$8.5 million for fiscal 1997. Interest expense incurred during fiscal 1999 is primarily associated
with the 6.0% Convertible Subordinated Notes, which were issued in September 1997 and are due
in 2002. The decrease in fiscal 1999 is primarily attributable to the retirement of $15.0 million of
these Notes towards the end of 1998. Interest incurred during fiscal 1997 also included expenses
from the convertible bond redeemed in March 1997 and a revolving line of credit.

Interest and Other Income, Net

Net interest and other income was $52.7 million for fiscal 1999 compared to $13.4 million for fis-
cal 1998 and $13.1 million for fiscal 1997. Net interest and other income for fiscal 1999 included a
$36.2 million gain from the sale of a certain investment and $17.8 million of interest income. Off-
setting other income was $1.0 million related to the amortization of bond issuance costs. In fiscal
1998, net interest and other income included interest income of $15.2 million, a $1.7 million pre-
tax net gain related to the retirement of $15.0 million of Cypress’s 6.0% Convertible Subordinated
Notes and foreign exchange gains of $0.5 million. The 1998 interest and other income, net is offset
by a non-recurring, pre-tax charge of $3.1 million recorded to reflect the decline in value of a cer-
tain investment and $1.0 million in amortization of bond issuance costs. Interest and other income,
net for fiscal 1997 relates primarily to interest income of $10.5 million and a $3.8 million gain from
the sale of a certain investment.

Taxes

Cypress’s effective tax rates for fiscal years 1999, 1998, and 1997 were 5.0%, 11.4%, and 42.7%,
respectively. A tax benefit of $13.5 million was realized during fiscal 1998 compared to expenses
of $4.8 million and $5.6 million during fiscal 1999 and fiscal 1997, respectively. The benefit was




attributable primarily to the utilization of loss carrybacks, the utilization of research and develop-
ment tax credits and non-U.S. income taxed at lower tax rates compared to U.S. tax rates, princi-
pally related to Cypress’s operations in the Philippines.

During 1998, the United States Internal Revenue Service began an examination of tax returns for
fiscal years 1994 through 1996. The examination is expected to continue through May 2000. Man-
agement believes that the outcome of the examination will not have a material effect on Cypress’s
consolidated financial position or results of operations.

Earnings Before Goodwill

Cypress reported basic earnings before goodwill (“EBG”) and diluted EBG. EBG refers to earnings
excluding pretax acquisition and restructuring related charges and credits, in-process research and
development costs, transaction costs and amortization of intangible assets, net of tax. EBG for the
year ended January 2, 2000 also excluded the one-time, pre-tax gain of $36.2 million from the sale
of a certain investment. These charges and credits are excluded from the computation of EBG and
are collectively referred to as goodwill by Cypress. Cypress presented EBG as a measure of our
operating results, however, EBG is not intended to replace operating income or net income as an
indicator of operating performance or to replace cash-flow as a measure of liquidity because EBG
is not a concept under generally accepted accounting principles. Also, our calculation of EBG may
not be comparable to EBG as calculated by other companies. The table below reconciles basic and
diluted net income (loss) per share to basic and diluted earnings (loss) before goodwill per share,
respectively.

Reconciliation of basic net income (loss) per share to basic earnings (loss) per share before good-
will:

Years ended

Jan. 2, Jan. 3, Dec. 29,

2000 1999 1997
Basic net income (loss) per share $ 087 $ (1.03) § 0.08
Goodwill net of taxes per share $ 0.01 $ — $ —
Restructuring costs (credits) net of taxes per share $ (0.03) $ 053 $ 0.05
Basic earnings (loss) before goodwill per share $ 085 $ (0.50) $ 0.13

Reconciliation of diluted net income (loss) per share to diluted earnings (loss) per share before
goodwill:

Years ended

Jan. 2, Jan. 3, Dec. 29,

2000 1999 1997
Diluted net income (loss) per share $ 081 $ (1.03) $ 007
Goodwill net of taxes per share $ 0.01 $ — $ —
Restructuring costs (credits) net of taxes per share $ (0.03) $ 053 $ 0.05
Diluted earnings (loss) before goodwill per share $ 079 $ (0.50) $§ 0.12

Stock Based Compensation

Cypress accounts for stock-based compensation arrangements in accordance with provision of APB
No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB 25”) and discloses pro forma informa-
tion regarding net income (loss) and earnings (loss) per share as allowed by Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 123 (SFAS 123). Under APB 25, compensation cost is recognized based
on the difference, if any, between the fair market price of Cypress’s stock on the date of grant and
the amount an employee must pay to acquire the stock. As permitted by SFAS 123, Cypress dis-
closes pro-forma net income (loss) and pro-forma net income (loss) per share as if it had recorded
compensation cost. The pro-forma effect on net income (loss) and net income (loss) per share is
based on the estimated grant date fair value, as defined by SFAS 123 for awards granted under the
Cypress’s 1994 and 1999 Stock Option Plans and its Employee Stock Purchase Plan. Inclusive of
the pro-forma effect, basic and diluted net income was $58.8 for fiscal 1999 and basic and diluted
net loss was $135.9 million and $17.5 million for fiscal years 1998 and 1997, respectively. Pro-
forma basic net income per share was $0.56 and diluted net income per share was $0.53 for fiscal
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1999. Pro-forma basic and diluted net loss per share was ($1.34) and ($0.18) for fiscal years 1998
and 1997, respectively. The pro-forma effect may be impacted by various factors including re-pric-
ing of existing options.

In January 1998, substantially all outstanding stock options with an exercise price in excess of
$9.75 per share were cancelled and replaced with new options having an exercise price of $9.75 per
share, the fair market value on the date that the employees accepted the repricing. A total of
10,464,000 shares were repriced. This repricing excluded the Board of Directors, the Chief Execu-
tive Officer and the Executive staff of Cypress.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cypress’s cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments totaled $270.6 million at the end of
fiscal year 1999, a $110.0 million increase from the end of 1998.

On January 31, 2000, Cypress filed a universal shelf registration statement with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC). The registration statement, which was effective February 8, 2000,
will allow Cypress to market and sell up to $400.0 million of its securities. The shelf registration
statement will allow Cypress flexibility to raise funds from the offering of debt securities, common
stock, or a combination thereof, subject to market conditions and Cypress’s capital needs.

During fiscal 1999, Cypress filed a registration statement on Form S-3 with the Securities and
Exchange Commission. Under this shelf registration, Cypress could through March 2001 sell any
combination of debt securities, preferred stock and common stock in one or more offerings up to a
total amount of $300.0 million dollars. The full amount of this shelf registration statement has been
used by the transactions described in this paragraph. On January 19, 2000, Cypress completed a
$283.0 million registered-placement of 5-year convertible subordinated notes. The notes are due in
the year 2005, with a coupon rate of 4.00% and an initial conversion premium of 28.5%. The notes
are convertible into approximately 6.1 million shares of common stock and are callable by Cypress
no earlier than February 5, 2003. Net proceeds were $275.2 million, after issuance costs of $7.8
million. Pursuant to the shelf registration, on March 29, 1999, Cypress sold 7.2 million shares of
common stock. Cypress received approximately $33.8 million in proceeds, net of issuance costs,
from the sale of these shares. The remaining 2.5 million shares were sold by selling stockholders.
Cypress did not receive any proceeds from the shares sold by the selling stockholders.

During 1999, Cypress purchased $114.1 million in capital equipment, a $31.2 million increase
from the $82.9 million purchased in 1998, and a $29.7 million decrease from the $143.8 million
purchased in 1997. Cypress purchased equipment for its domestic wafer fabrication plants, its test
and assembly facility in the Philippines, its backend manufacturing subcontractors and its design
and technology groups. Equipment purchased for its fabs is expected to improve wafer manufactur-
ing capacity and capabilities as Cypress implements new technologies, including its 0.16 and 0.25
micron processes. A majority of the equipment purchased was for Fab 4a located in Minnesota to
increase its capacity and capability. Equipment purchased for the Philippines and its subcontractors
was used to increase manufacturing capacity and tool certain packaging capabilities. Capital equip-
ment purchases for the technology group are expected to enhance and accelerate research and
development capabilities. Capital expenditures in 2000 are expected to be significantly higher com-
pared to 1999 as Cypress continues its efforts to increase its wafer manufacturing capabilities and
capacity by purchasing more equipment for Fab 4a and by constructing Fab 4b and Fab 4c, located
on the same site as Fab 4a in Minnesota. Cypress also expects to continue upgrading its research
and development fab in San Jose from six-inch to eight-inch to ensure compatibility with Cypress’s
wafer manufacturing facilities in Minnesota. The conversion is expected to be completed by June
2000. Cypress will also continue to purchase new software and equipment to enhance its research
and development capabilities. In fiscal 2000, Cypress expects to purchase approximately $250.0
million in capital equipment.

In March 1999, Cypress announced a program whereby all U.S. employees were offered loans to
facilitate the exercise of vested stock options. Under the terms of the program, only options which
were vested as of March 1, 1999 and whose exercise price was less than or equal to $9.75 could
qualify for a loan. The loans, including interest, are due at the earlier of three days following the
sale of the shares, within thirty days of the date the individual ceases to be an employee of Cypress
or 3 years from the grant date of the loan. The loans bear interest at a rate of 4.71% and are secured
by full recourse. At January 2, 2000, amounts receivable under this program totaled $8.2 million.




In 1998, Cypress retired a total of $15.0 million principal of its $175.0 million, 6.0% convertible
subordinated notes for $12.9 million, resulting in a pre-tax net gain of $1.7 million. The net gain
was recorded as interest and other income. The notes, which were issued in September 1997, are
due October 1, 2002 and contain a coupon rate of 6.0%. The remaining outstanding notes are con-
vertible into approximately 6,772,000 shares of common stock and are callable by Cypress on or
after October 2, 2000. A portion of the proceeds from the notes were used to repay the $49.0 mil-
lion balance outstanding under the revolving credit facility, acquire equipment, purchase a building
in Woodinville, Washington and for stock repurchases in 1997. The remaining proceeds have been
invested in interest-bearing investment grade securities and have been used for general corporate
purposes, including capital expenditures to add manufacturing capacity and capability, develop-
ment and commercialization of products, working capital and strategic acquisitions or investments.

During fiscal 1997, Cypress entered into an agreement to borrow $2.0 million from a third party
with interest accruing at 6.0% per annum. The loan was repaid in April 1999. Also during 1997,
Cypress issued promissory notes to three significant customers for $2.0 million, $1.4 million and
$0.3 million, bearing interest at 6.0%, 10.0% and 7.5%, respectively and due in October 2000,
August 2000 and July 1999, respectively. As of January 2, 2000, a total of $0.7 million was payable
under the notes.

In fiscal years 1997 and 1998, the Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to 14.0 mil-
lion shares of Cypress’s common stock. Through January 3, 1999, 8.1 million shares had been
repurchased under this entire program for $67.5 million. On February 25, 1999, the Board of Direc-
tors terminated the stock repurchase program. The unsold repurchased shares were and are
expected to continue to be used for option exercises under Cypress’s 1994 Stock Option Plan and
stock purchases under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan. During 1998, Cypress reissued 1.8 mil-
lion shares of common stock under such plans. During fiscal 1999, Cypress reissued a total of 8.3
million shares in relation to the stock offering described above and in conjunction with the 1994
Stock Option Plan and Employee Purchase Plan. Such shares had been repurchased under the 1997/
1998 plan and repurchase programs prior to 1997.

In February 1997, Cypress called for redemption of all of the 3.15% Convertible Subordinated
Notes which was effective as of March 26, 1997. At the time of conversion, approximately 85% of
the holders elected to convert their notes into Cypress’s common stock, increasing the amount of
common stock outstanding by 6.8 million shares. As a result of holders electing the cash settlement,
Cypress paid out $14.3 million.

In April 1997, Cypress sold capital equipment located in its Minnesota wafer fabrication facility to
Fleet Capital Leasing (“Fleet”) in a sale-leaseback agreement. In October 1997, Cypress entered
into a similar agreement with Comdisco, Inc. (“Comdisco”) for other capital equipment located in
Minnesota. Cypress received a total of $28.2 million from Fleet and Comdisco in exchange for the
capital equipment and as a result of the transactions, recorded an immaterial gain that will be amor-
tized over the life of the leases.

In 1994 and 1995, Cypress entered into three operating lease agreements with respect to its office
and manufacturing facilities in San Jose and Minnesota. In 1999, the lease related to the San Jose
office and research and development facilities expired. In October 1999, Cypress re-entered into a
new operating lease agreement with the same lessor for the same facilities. In April 1996, Cypress
entered into an additional lease agreement for two office facilities in San Jose. These agreements
require that Cypress maintain a specific level of restricted cash or investments to serve as collateral
for these leases and maintain compliance with certain financial covenants. Cypress’s restricted
investment balance as of January 2, 2000 and January 3, 1999 was $61.2 million and $59.7 million,
respectively, and is recorded as other assets on the Balance Sheet. Cypress was in compliance with
its covenants at January 2, 2000.

In 1997, Cypress established a revolving line of credit with a bank totaling up to $6.5 million.
Cypress cancelled this line of credit in June 1999. In July 1996, Cypress established a three-year
$100.0 million unsecured revolving credit facility with Bank of America National Trust and Sav-
ings Association as agent on behalf of certain banks. During 1998, Cypress cancelled this line of
credit.

Cypress believes that existing cash and cash equivalents and cash from operations will be sufficient
to meet present and anticipated working capital requirements and other cash needs for at least the
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next twelve months. Beyond twelve months, changes in market demand and the possible need to
increase manufacturing capacity and capability may cause Cypress to raise additional capital
through debt or equity financing. Although additional financing may be required, there can be no
assurance that it would be available to Cypress or available at terms Cypress deems satisfactory.

Factors Affecting Future Results
Risk Factors

Except for the historical information contained herein, the discussion in this Annual Report con-
tains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933,
as amended, including, but not limited to, statements as to the future operating results and business
plans of Cypress, that involve risks and uncertainties. We use such words as “anticipated,”
“believes,” “expects,” “future,” “intends,” and similar expressions to identify forward-looking
statements. Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-look-
ing statements for any reason, including the risks described below and elsewhere in this Annual
Report. If any of the following risks actually occur, our business, financial condition and operating
results could be seriously harmed.

The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones Cypress faces. Additional risks
and uncertainties not presently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial also may impair
Cypress’s business operations. If any of the following risks actually occur, our business financial
condition and operating results could be seriously harmed, the trading price of our common stock
could decline and you might lose all or part of your investment.

Following is a summary of the risk factors:

» Cypress’s future operating results are very likely to fluctuate and therefore may fail to meet
expectations.

» Cypress faces periods of industry-wide semiconductor over-supply which may harm its
results.

» Cypress’s financial results could be seriously harmed if the markets in which it sells its prod-
ucts do not grow.

» Cypress is affected by a general pattern of product price decline and fluctuations, which can
adversely impact its business.

+ Cypress may be unable to adequately protect its intellectual property rights, and may face sig-
nificant expenses as a result of ongoing, or future, litigation.

» Cypress’s financial results could be seriously harmed if it fails to develop, introduce and sell
new products or fails to develop and implement new manufacturing technologies.

* Interruptions in the availability of raw materials can seriously harm Cypress’s financial per-
formance.

* Problems in the performance of other companies Cypress hires to perform certain manufac-
turing tasks can seriously impact Cypress’s financial performance.

» The complex nature of Cypress’s manufacturing activities makes the company highly suscep-
tible to manufacturing problems and these problems can have substantial negative impact
when they occur.

» Cypress may not be able to use all of its existing or future manufacturing capacity, which can
negatively impact its business.

» Cypress’s operations and financial results could be severely harmed by certain natural disas-
ters.

» Cypress’s business, results of operations and financial condition will be seriously harmed if it
fails to compete in its highly competitive industry and markets.

» Cypress must build semiconductors based on its forecasts of demand, and if its forecasts are
inaccurate, Cypress may have large amounts of unsold products or the company may not be
able to fill all orders.

» Cypress must spend heavily on equipment to stay competitive, and will be seriously harmed if
it is unable to secure financing for such investments.

» Cypress competes with others to attract and retain key personnel, and any loss of, or inability
to attract such personnel would hurt Cypress.




» Cypress faces additional problems and uncertainties associated with international operations
that could seriously harm it.

» Cypress is subject to many different environmental regulations and compliance with them
may be costly.

» Cypress depends on third parties to transport its products and could be harmed if these parties
experience problems.

* Cypress faces a number of unknown risks associated with year 2000 problems.

» Cypress may fail to integrate its business and technologies with those of companies that it has
recently acquired and that it may acquire in the future.

For a complete detailed discussion of risk factors, refer to Cypress’s Annual Report for its fiscal
year ended January 2, 2000, filed on Form 10-K with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Year 2000 Readiness Disclosure

The year 2000 computer issue creates a variety of risks for Cypress. The year 2000 computer prob-
lem refers to the potential for system and processing failures of date-related data as a result of com-
puter-controlled systems using two digits rather than four to define the applicable year. For
example, computer programs that have time-sensitive software may recognize a date represented as
“00” as the year 1900 rather than the year 2000. This could result in a system failure or miscalcula-
tions causing disruptions of operations, including among other things, interruptions in manufactur-
ing, design and process development operations, disruptions in processing business transactions,
and disruptions in other normal business activities. Issues related to the year 2000 computer prob-
lem could still arise. The risks involve:

» potential warranty or other claims by customers with respect to errors in Cypress’s products;
* errors in systems we use to run Cypress’s business;

* errors in systems used by Cypress’s suppliers;

* errors in systems used by customers; and

 potential reduced spending by customers as a result of concerns about potential year 2000
problems.

Cypress has designed most of our products to be year 2000 compliant and has developed corrective
measures for other products that were not originally designed to be year 2000 compliant. However,
its products may be integrated into or used in conjunction with products supplied by other vendors.
Cypress cannot evaluate whether all of the products of other vendors are year 2000 compliant.
Cypress may face claims based on year 2000 problems in other companies’ products or based on
issues arising from the integration or use of multiple products. Cypress may in the future be
required to defend its products in legal proceedings that could be expensive regardless of the merits
of these claims.

If Cypress’s suppliers, vendors, partners, customers and service providers fail to correct their year
2000 problems, these failures could result in an interruption in, or a failure of, its normal business
activities or operations. If a year 2000 problem occurs, it may be difficult to determine which
party's products have caused the problem. These failures could interrupt our operations and damage
its relationships with customers. Due to the general uncertainty inherent in the year 2000 problem
resulting from the readiness of third-party suppliers and vendors, we are unable to determine at this
time whether third-party year 2000 failures could harm its business, results of operations and finan-
cial condition.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Market Risk

Cypress is exposed to financial market risks, including changes in interest rates and foreign cur-
rency exchange rates. To mitigate these risks, Cypress utilizes derivative financial instruments.
Cypress does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative or trading purposes.

The fair value of Cypress’s investment portfolio or related income would not be significantly
impacted by either a 100 basis point increase or decrease in interest rates due mainly to the short-
term nature of the major portion of Cypress’s investment portfolio. An increase in interest rates
would not significantly increase interest expense due to the fixed nature of Cypress’s debt obliga-
tion.

A majority of Cypress’s revenue and capital spending is transacted in U.S. dollars. However,
Cypress does enter into these transactions in other currencies, primarily Japanese yen and certain




other European currencies. To protect against reductions in value and the volatility of future cash
flows caused by changes in foreign exchange rates, Cypress has established revenue and balance
sheet hedging programs. Cypress’s hedging programs reduce, but do not always eliminate, the
impact of foreign currency rate movements. Based on Cypress’s overall currency rate exposure at
January 2, 2000, a near-term 10% appreciation or depreciation in the U.S. dollar would have an
immaterial effect on Cypress’s financial position, results of operations and cash flows over the next
fiscal year.

All of the potential changes noted above are based on sensitivity analyses performed on Cypress’s
balances as of January 2, 2000.




Consolidated Balance Sheets

(In thousands, except per-share amounts)

January 2, 2000 January 3, 1999
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 155,011 $ 142,102
Short-term investments 115,545 18.459
Total cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments 270,556 160,561
Accounts receivable, net (Note 2) 100,114 68,955
Inventories (Note 2) 89,432 65,096
Other current assets 77,293 55,437
Total current assets 537,395 350,049
Property, plant and equipment, net (Note 2) 357,183 348,936
Other assets (Note 2) 222,646 125,011
$ 1,117,224 $ 823,996
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 99,549 $ 53,932
Accrued compensation and employee benefits 32,428 20,293
Other accrued liabilities (Note 2) 19,717 12,852
Deferred income on sales to distributors 20,760 13,300
Income taxes payable 20,311 13,591
Total current liabilities 192,765 113,968
Convertible subordinated notes 160,000 160,000
Deferred income taxes 56,100 41,065
Other long-term liabilities 10,384 10,240
Total liabilities 419,249 325,273

Commitments and contingencies (Note 9)
Stockholders' equity:
Preferred stock, $.01 par value, 5,000 shares authorized; none
issued and outstanding — —
Common stock, $.01 par value, 250,000 shares authorized;
115,496 and 110,753 issued; 110,516 and 97,465 outstanding at

January 2, 2000 and January 3, 1999 1,155 1,107
Additional paid-in-capital 534,225 482,781
Notes receivable from stockholders (8,186) —
Deferred compensation (484) (1,152)
Retained earnings 243,989 180,625

770,699 663,361
Less: shares of common stock held in treasury, at cost; 4,980 shares
at January 2, 2000 and 13,288 shares at January 3, 1999 (72,724) 164.638)
Total stockholders' equity 697,975 498,723
$ 1,117,224 $ 823,996

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.




Consolidated Statements of Operations

(In thousands, except per-share amounts) Year Ended
January 2, January 3, December?29,
2000 1999 1997
Revenues $ 705,487 $ 554,891 $ 598,485
Cost of revenues 383,639 409,108 393,769
Research and development 129,331 114,551 104,300
Selling, general and administrative 105,882 91,016 82,026
Acquisition and other non-recurring costs, net 37,623 — —
Restructuring costs (3,811) 60,737 9,882
Total operating costs and expenses 652,664 675,412 589,977
Operating income (loss) 52,823 (120,521) 8,508
Interest expense (9,617) (11,276) (8,461)
Interest income and other, net 52,665 13,356 13,092
Income (loss) before income taxes 95,871 (118,441) 13,139
(Provision) benefit for income taxes (4,817) 13,523 (5,613)
Net income (loss) $ 91,054 $ (104,918) $ 7,526
Net income (loss) per share:
Basic $ 0.87 $ (1.03) $ 0.08
Diluted $ 0.81 $ (1.03) $ 0.07
Weighted average common and common equivalent shares
outstanding:
Basic 104,703 101,944 100,137
Diluted 111,735 101,944 107,866

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.




Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

(In thousands)

Notes
Additional Receivable Total
Common Stock Paid-In From Deferred Retained  Treasury Stockholders’
Shares Amount Capital Stockholders Compensation  Earnings Stock Equity
Balances at
December 30, 1996 91,104 $ 1,014 $ 344,533 — $ (621) $ 284,033 $ (116,843) $ 512,116
Re-issuance of treasury
shares under employee
stock plans and other 5,556 22 36,980 — — — — 37,002
Premiums received from put
option issuances — — 2,760 — — — — 2,760
Tax benefit resulting from
stock option transactions — — 6,959 — — — — 6,959
Issuance of common stock
from the conversion of the
convertible debt 6,789 67 83,036 — — — — 83,103
Repurchase of common
stock under stock repurchase
program (516) — — — — — (5,288) (5,288)
Adjustment to deferred
compensation — — — — 454 — — 454
Net income for the year — — — — — 7,526 — 7,526
Balances at
December 29, 1997 102,933 1,103 474,268 — 167) 291,559 (122,131) 644,632
Cypress (ICW) activities for
the Quarter ended
March 28, 1999 — — — — — 1,622 — 1,622
Re-issuance of treasury
shares under employee
stock plans and other 2,139 4 1,893 — — (7,638) 19,767 14,026
Premiums received from put
option issuances — — 6,620 — — — — 6,620
Repurchase of common
stock under stock repurchase
program (7,607) — — — — — (62,274) (62,274)
Adjustment to deferred
compensation — — — — (985) — — (985)
Net loss for the year — — — — — (104,918) — (104,918)
Balances at
January 3, 1999 97,465 1,107 482,781 — (1,152) 180,625 (164,638) 498,723
Re-issuance of treasury shares
and issuance of common
stock under employee stock
plans and other 13,051 48 37,438 — — (27,690) 91,914 101,710
Tax benefit resulting from
stock option transactions — — 13,772 — — — — 13,772
Notes receivable from
stockholders — — — (8,186) — — — (8,186)
Compensation expense to
outside consultants — — 234 — — — — 234
Adjustment to deferred
compensation — — — — 668 — — 668
Net income for the year — — — — — 91,054 — 91,054
Balances at
January 2, 2000 110,516 $ 1,155 $ 534,225 $ (8,186) $ (484) $ 243,989 § (72,724) $ 697,975

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.




Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(In thousands) Year Ended
January 2, January 3, December?29,
2000 1999 1997

Cash flow from operating activities:
Net income (loss) $ 91,054 $  (104,918) $ 7,526
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash
generated by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 107,423 114,598 114,013
Acquired in-process research and development 4,019 — —
Non-cash interest and amortization of debt
issuance costs 1,034 1,034 3,978
Net gain on early retirement of debt — (1,734) —
Loss on sale of fixed assets — 1,069 —
Loss on write down of fixed assets 10,336 — —
Deferred gain on sale of fixed assets (3,959) — (3,431)
Gain on sale of investment (36,237) — —
Restructuring costs (credits) (3,811) 60,737 4,952
Other non-recurring costs — 8,827 —
Deferred income taxes (9,971) (797) 14,782
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Receivables (30,282) 9,332 4,191
Inventories (22,788) 18,013 (25,895)
Other assets (10,577) 35,298 (152)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 55,280 (14,862) (16,695)
Deferred income 7,460 2,445 (5,266)
Income taxes payable 6,720 (22,770) 15,870
Net cash flow generated from operating activities 165,701 106,272 113,873
Cash flow from investing activities:
Purchase of investments (218,236) (110,718) (112,185)
Sale or maturities of investments 66,872 127,195 93,870
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (114,120) (82,929) (143,803)
Acquisition of Anchor (14,956) — —
Acquisition of Arcus (9,883) — —
Acquisition of technology rights (4,700) — —
Acquisition of product rights and equity interest
from Altera (12,187) — —
Proceeds from sale of investment 36,237 — —
Proceeds from sale of equipment 15,179 6,551 40,789
Net cash flow used for investing activities (255,794) (59,901) (121,329)

Cash flow from financing activities:

Repayment of line of credit — (3,369) (49,249)
Repayment of debt (2,653) — —
Repayment of notes payable — (1,186) (5,780)
Issuance of convertible subordinated notes, net of
issuance costs — — 170,187
Redemption of convertible debt — — (14,331)
Early retirement of debt — (12,916) —
Restricted investments related to building lease
agreements — — 601
Repurchase of common stock — (62,274) (5,288)
Re-issuance of treasury shares and issuance of common
stock 113,444 12,470 41,173
Issuance of notes to stockholders (8,186) — —
Premiums received from put options — 6,620 2,760
Other long-term liabilities, including minority
interest 397 (1,082) (615)
Net cash flow generated (used) for financing activities 103,002 (61,737) 139,458
Cypress (ICW) net change in cash during the quarter
ended March 28, 1999 — 3,434 —
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 12,909 (11,932) 132,002
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 142,102 154,034 22,032
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 155,011 $ 142,102 $ 154,034
Supplemental disclosures:
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest $ 9,600 $ 10,092 $ 5,707
Income taxes $ 3,546 $ 452 $ 1,550

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Cypress — Cypress Semiconductor Corporation (“Cypress”) designs, develops, manufactures and markets a
broad line of high-performance digital and mixed-signal integrated circuits for a range of markets, including
computers, data communications, telecommunications and instrumentation systems.

Cypress’s operations outside of the U.S. expanded in 1996 with the addition of its test and assembly plant in
the Philippines. Cypress’s other foreign operations include several sales offices and design centers located in
various parts of the world. Revenues to international customers were 51%, 45% and 39% of total revenues in
1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively.

In 1999, Cypress purchased from Altera Corporation, Altera’s 17% equity interest in Cypress Semiconductor
(Texas) Inc. (“CTI”), Cypress’s wafer fabrication facility in Texas. As a result of this purchase, all of Cypress’s
subsidiaries were wholly owned at January 2, 2000 (See Note 4).

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Cypress and all of its subsidiaries. Intercompany
transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

Fiscal Year — Beginning with its 1998 fiscal year end, Cypress ended its fiscal months, quarters and years on
Sundays, rather than Mondays, bringing its fiscal period ends in line with predominant industry practice. Fis-
cal years 1999, 1998 and 1997 ended January 2, 2000, January 3, 1999 and December 29, 1997, respectively.
Fiscal year 1999 was a 52-week year ending on the Sunday closest to December 31, fiscal year 1998 was a 53-
week year ending on the Sunday closest to December 31 and fiscal year 1997 was a 52-week year ending on
the Monday closest to December 31. Operating results for the additional week were considered immaterial to
Cypress's consolidated operating results for the year ended January 3, 1999.

Management Estimates — The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates,
although such differences are not expected to be material to the financial statements.

Reclassifications — Certain prior year amounts have been adjusted to conform to current year presentation.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments — For certain of Cypress’s financial instruments, including cash and
cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and other current liabilities, the carrying amounts
approximate their fair value due to the relatively short maturity of these items. The estimated fair market value
of Cypress’s investments reasonably estimate their fair values based on market information. At January 2,
2000, the estimated fair value of the Convertible Subordinated Notes was $234.2 million.

The estimated fair values have been determined by Cypress, using available market information. However,
considerable judgement is required in interpreting market data to develop the estimates of fair value. Accord-
ingly, the estimates presented are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that Cypress could realize in a cur-
rent market exchange. The use of different market assumptions and/or estimation methodologies could have a
material effect on the estimated fair value amounts.

Cash Equivalents — Highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of ninety days or less are
considered to be cash equivalents.

Investments — All Cypress investments are classified as available-for-sale. Investments in available-for-sale
securities are reported at fair value with unrealized gains and losses, net of related tax, if any, included as a
component of stockholders’ equity. Unrealized gains and losses net of related taxes, were not material for the
year ended January 2, 2000 or cumulatively.

In fiscal 1998, Cypress recorded a $3.0 million writedown of a certain investment that was believed to be per-
manently impaired. In 1999, due to a resurgence in the semiconductor business, the value of the investment
increased. 1In fiscal 1999, Cypress sold the investment, recording a pre-tax gain of $36.2 million, which is
included in interest and other income, net.

Inventories — Inventories are stated at the lower of standard cost (which approximates actual cost on a first-
in, first-out basis) or market. Market is based on estimated net realizable value.

Property, Plant and Equipment — Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreci-
ation. Depreciation is computed for financial reporting purposes using the straight-line method over the esti-
mated useful lives of the assets as presented below. Leasehold improvements and leasehold interests are
amortized over the shorter of the estimated useful lives of the assets or the remaining term of the lease. Accel-
erated methods of computing depreciation are used for tax purposes.




Useful Lives in Years

Equipment 3to7
Buildings and leasehold improvements 7 to 10
Furniture and fixtures 5

Pre-operating Costs — Incremental costs incurred in connection with developing major production capability
at new manufacturing plants, including depreciation, amortization and cost of qualification of equipment and
production processes were capitalized up to December 1997. Pre-operating costs totaling $3.8 million, net of
accumulated amortization were included in other assets at December 29, 1997. Such costs were being amor-
tized over five years at a rate based on estimated units to be manufactured during that period. In fiscal 1998,
these costs were written off and at January 2, 2000, no pre-operating costs are remaining.

Long-Lived Assets — Long-lived assets held and used by Cypress are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. In addition, all
long-lived assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of carrying amount or fair market value, less
expected selling costs.

Revenue Recognition — Revenues from product sales are generally recognized upon shipment and a reserve
is provided for estimated returns. A portion of Cypress’s sales are made to domestic distributors under agree-
ments which allow certain rights of return and price protection on products unsold. Accordingly, Cypress
defers recognition of revenues and profit on such sales until these distributors resell the products.

Cypress sells to certain international distributors with a provision for price adjustments on certain products.
Cypress reserves for all anticipated price adjustments. No rights of return exist on sales to international distrib-
utors. Accordingly, sales are recognized upon shipment.

Cypress also has inventory, which is held by certain customers on a consignment basis. Revenues are recorded
when title transfers as defined per the respective consignment agreements.

Income Taxes — Cypress follows the liability method of accounting for income taxes which requires recogni-
tion of deferred tax liabilities and assets for the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets and liabilities.

Earnings Per Share — In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 128 (“SFAS
128”), Cypress reports Earnings Per Share (“EPS”), both basic and diluted EPS on the income statement.
Basic EPS is based upon weighted-average common shares outstanding. Diluted EPS is computed using the
weighted-average common shares outstanding plus any potentially dilutive securities, except when their effect
is anti-dilutive. Dilutive securities include stock options and convertible debt.

Translation of Foreign Currencies — Cypress uses the U.S. dollar as its functional currency for all foreign
subsidiaries. Accordingly, gains and losses from translation of foreign currency financial statements into U.S.
dollars are included in results of operations. Sales to customers are primarily denominated in U.S. dollars. All
foreign currency translation gains and losses have not been material in any year.

Concentration of Credit Risk — Financial instruments that potentially subject Cypress to concentrations of
credit risk are primarily investments and trade accounts receivable. Cypress’s investment policy requires cash
investments to be placed with high-credit quality institutions and to limit the amount of credit from any one
issuer.

Cypress sells its products to original equipment manufacturers and distributors throughout the world. Cypress
performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers’ financial condition whenever deemed necessary and
generally does not require collateral. Cypress maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts receivable based
upon the expected collectibility of all accounts receivable.

No one end user accounted for greater than 10% of revenues in 1999, 1998 or 1997. Sales to one distributor
accounted for greater than 10% of total revenues in 1999, 1998 and 1997.

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Cypress accounts for its stock option plans and its employee
stock purchase plan in accordance with provisions of the Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.” In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Stan-
dards No. 123 (“SFAS 123”), “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” Cypress provides additional pro-
forma disclosures in Note 7.

Comprehensive Income — In 1998, Cypress adopted SFAS No. 130, “Reporting Comprehensive Income.”
Comprehensive income is defined as the change in equity of a company during a period from transactions and
other events and circumstances, excluding transactions resulting from investments by owners and distributions
to owners. Cypress did not have a material difference between net income and comprehensive income for the
year ended January 2, 2000 or cumulatively.

Segment Reporting — In fiscal 1998, Cypress adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 131,
“Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information” (“SFAS 131”). SFAS 131 establishes
standards for disclosures about products and services, geographic areas and major customers. (See Note 11.)




Recent Accounting Pronouncements — In June 1999, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”)
issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 137 (“SFAS 137”), “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities - Deferral of the Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 133.” SFAS 137
amends Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133 (“SFAS 133”), “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities,” to defer its effective date to all fiscal quarters of all fiscal years begin-
ning after June 15, 2000. SFAS 133 establishes accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments
including standalone instruments, such as forward currency exchange contracts and interest rate swaps or
embedded derivatives and requires that these instruments be marked-to-market on an ongoing basis. These
market value adjustments are to be included either in the income statement or stockholders’ equity, depending
on the nature of the transaction. Cypress is required to adopt SFAS 133 in the first quarter of its fiscal year
2001.The effect of SFAS 133 is not expected to be material to the Cypress’s financial statements.

Note 2: Balance Sheet Components

Available-For-Sale Securities

Cypress’s portfolio of available-for-sale securities consists of the following:

(In thousands)

January 2, 2000 January 3, 1999

Corporate debt securities $ 175,510 $ 101,042
State and municipal obligations 77,902 73,607
Money markets 69,755 —
Other 39,811 23,341
Total available-for-sale securities $ 362,978 $ 197,990

At January 2, 2000 and January 3, 1999, the net unrealized holding gains and losses on securities were imma-
terial. The securities at January 2, 2000 and January 3, 1999 by contractual maturity are shown below.

(In thousands)

January 2, 2000 January 3, 1999
Due in one year or less $ 251,654 $ 140,944
Due after one year through two years 111,324 57,046
Total available-for-sale securities $ 362,978 $ 197,990
Accounts Receivable, Net
(In thousands)
January 2, 2000 January 3, 1999
Accounts receivable, gross $ 103,098 $ 72,005
Allowance for doubtful accounts and customer returns (2,984) (3,050)
Accounts receivable, net $100,114 $ 68,955
Inventories, Net
(In thousands)
January 2, 2000 January 3, 1999
Raw materials $ 13,360 $ 8,939
Work-in-process 45,247 37,087
Finished goods 30,825 19,070
Inventories, net $ 89,432 $ 65,096
Property, Plant and Equipment
(In thousands)
January 2, 2000 January 3, 1999
Land $ 13,829 $ 13,533
Equipment 733,581 623,393
Buildings and leasehold improvements 101,976 96,825
Furniture and fixtures 8,449 6,656
Total property, plant and equipment 857,835 740,407
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (500,652) (391,471)
Net property, plant and equipment $ 357,183 $ 348,936




Other Assets
(In thousands)

January 2, 2000 January 3, 1999

Restricted investments $ 61,198 $ 59,742
Long-term investments 111,324 57,046
Other, principally purchased intangibles 50,124 8,223

Total other assets $ 222,646 $ 125,011

In September 1999, Cypress acquired the rights and patents covering the Silicon Oxide Nitride Oxide Silicon
(“SONOS”) non-volatile memory technology from NVX Corporation for $4.7 million. These intangible assets
are included in Other Assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheet and are being amortized over their useful life.

Other Accrued Liabilities

(In thousands)
January 2, 2000 January 3, 1999
Sales commissions $ 3,031 $ 3,290
Restructuring reserves 2,313 8,070
Warranty reserve 2,672 —
Other 11,701 1,492
Total other accrued liabilities $ 19,717 $ 12,852

Note 3: Acquisitions

Acquisition of Arcus Technology Companies

On June 30, 1999, Cypress acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of Arcus Technology (USA), Inc. and
the assets of Arcus Technology (India) Limited (referred to as “Arcus” on a combined basis). Arcus special-
izes in data communications technologies including dense wave multiplexing (which allows multiple signals
to be transmitted over a single fiber-optic cable) and “IP over SONET” (the technology used to code and
decode Internet traffic to send it over the telephone system). The acquisition was accounted for using purchase
accounting. Accordingly, the estimated fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed were included in
Cypress’s condensed consolidated balance sheet as of and since June 30, 1999, the effective date of the pur-
chase. The results of operations of Arcus are included in Cypress’s consolidated results of operations during
the second half of Cypress’s fiscal year 1999.

Cypress acquired Arcus for a total consideration of $17.7 million, including cash of $11.5 million and stock of
$6.2 million, (excluding direct acquisition costs of $0.8 million for legal and accounting fees). Through
December 31, 1999 Cypress paid $9.9 million in cash and issued $2.3 million in stock. The remaining $1.6
million in cash and $3.9 million in stock are expected to be paid and issued by future installments. The total
purchase price was allocated to the estimated fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the time of
the acquisition based on independent appraisals and management estimates as follows:

(In thousands)
Fair value of tangible net assets $ 391
In-process research and development 2,500
Current technology 4,400
Assembled workforce 1,600
Deferred compensation 5,553
Excess of purchase price over net assets acquired 3,264

$ 17,708

The valuation method used to value the in-process technology of Arcus is a form of discounted cash flow
method commonly known as the “percentage of completion” approach whereby the cash flow derived from
the technology is multiplied by the percentage of completion of the in-process technology. This approach is a
widely recognized appraisal method and is commonly used to value technology assets. The value of the in-
process technology of Arcus is the discounted expected future cash flow attributable to the in-process technol-
ogy, taking into consideration the percentage of completion of products utilizing this technology, utilization of
pre-existing technology, the risks related to the characteristics and applications of the technology, existing and
future markets, and the technological risk associated with completing the development of the technology. The
cash flow derived from the in-process technology projects was discounted using a discount rate of 32.5%,
which was appropriate for the risk of this technology for which commercial feasibility had not been estab-
lished. The percentage of completion for each in-process project was determined by identifying milestones of
completed project steps as compared to the remaining milestones to be completed to bring the project to tech-




nical and commercial feasibility. Milestones were based on management’s estimate of tasks completed, value
added and degree of difficulty of the portion of the project completed as of the acquisition date, in comparison
with the tasks to be completed to bring the project to technical and commercial feasibility. A deduction of
7.5% to 12.0% of expected future revenue was made in calculating future cash flows from in-process technol-
ogy and attributed to previously existing technology.

The value of current technology was determined by estimating the future cash flows to be derived from prod-
ucts based on existing commercially feasible technologies at the date of the acquisition, and discounting asso-
ciated cash flow using a discount rate of 25.0%, which was appropriate for the business risks inherent in
manufacturing and marketing these products. Factors considered in estimating the future cash flow to be
derived from the existing technology include risks related to the characteristics and applications of the technol-
ogy, existing and future markets, and assessment of the age of the technology within its life span.

The value of the assembled workforce is based on estimated costs to replace the existing staff including
recruiting, hiring and training costs for all categories of employee to fully deploy a work force of similar size
and skill to the same level of productivity as the existing work force. Deferred compensation value is the cash
and stock consideration to be paid by future installments.

Development of in-process technology remains a substantial risk to Cypress due to many factors including the
remaining effort to achieve technical feasibility, rapidly changing customer requirements and competitive
threats from other companies and technologies. Additionally, the value of the other intangible assets acquired
may become impaired. The in-process research and development valuation as well as the valuation of other
intangible assets was prepared by an independent appraiser of technology assets, based on inputs from Cypress
and Arcus management, utilizing valuation methods that are recognized by the Securities and Exchange Com-
mission (“SEC”) staff. However, there can be no assurance that the SEC staff will not take issue with any
assumptions used in the appraiser’s valuation model and require Cypress to revise the amount allocated to in-
process research and development.

The amounts allocated to current technology, assembled workforce, and residual goodwill are being amortized
over their respective estimated useful lives between six and ten years using the straight-line method. The
deferred compensation is being amortized on a straight line basis over two years.

Acquisition of Anchor Chips, Inc.

On May 25, 1999, Cypress acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of Anchor Chips, Inc. (“Anchor”), a
company that designs and markets microcontroller chips that support Universal Serial Bus applications. The
acquisition was accounted for using purchase accounting. Accordingly, the estimated fair value of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed were included in Cypress’s condensed consolidated balance sheet as of and
since May 25, 1999, the effective date of the purchase. The results of operations of Anchor were included in
Cypress’s consolidated results of operations as of and since the effective date of the purchase.

Cypress paid approximately $15.0 million in cash, which excludes direct acquisition costs of $0.7 million for
investment banking, legal and accounting fees. In addition Cypress assumed net liabilities of approximately
$0.9 million. The total purchase consideration of $15.9 million was allocated to the estimated fair value of
assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on a valuation completed by management, using a valuation
methodology commonly applied by independent appraisers, as follows:

(In thousands)
Fair value of tangible net liabilities $ (919
In-process research and development 1,519
Assembled workforce 1,320
Current technology 13,036

$ 14,956

The valuation method used to value the in-process technology of Anchor is a form of discounted cash flow
method commonly known as the “percentage of completion” approach whereby the cash flow derived from the
technology is multiplied by the percentage of completion of the in-process technology. This approach is a
widely recognized appraisal method and is commonly used to value technology assets. The value of the in-pro-
cess technology of Anchor is the discounted expected future cash flow attributable to the in-process technol-
ogy, taking into consideration the percentage of completion of products utilizing this technology, utilization of
pre-existing technology, the risks related to the characteristics and applications of the technology, existing and
future markets, and the technological risk associated with completing the development of the technology. The
cash flow derived from the in-process technology projects was discounted using a discount rate of 32.5%,
which was appropriate for the risk of this technology for which commercial feasibility had not been estab-
lished. The percentage of completion for each in-process project was determined by identifying milestones of
completed project steps as compared to the remaining milestones to be completed to bring the project to tech-
nical and commercial feasibility. Milestones were based on management’s estimate of tasks completed, value
added and degree of difficulty of the portion of the project completed as of the acquisition date, in comparison
with the tasks to be completed to bring the project to technical and commercial feasibility. A deduction of




7.5% to 12.0% of expected future revenue was made in calculating future cash flows from in-process technol-
ogy and attributed to previously existing technology.

The value of the assembled workforce is based on estimated costs to replace the existing staft including
recruiting, hiring and training costs for all categories of employee to fully deploy a work force of similar size
and skill to the same level of productivity as the existing work force.

The value of current technology was determined by estimating the future cash flows to be derived from prod-
ucts based on existing commercially feasible technologies at the date of the acquisition, and discounting asso-
ciated cash flow using a discount rate of 25.0%, which was appropriate for the business risks inherent in
manufacturing and marketing these products. Factors considered in estimating the future cash flow to be
derived from the existing technology include risks related to the characteristics and applications of the tech-
nology, existing and future markets, and assessment of the age of the technology within its life span.

Development of in-process technology remains a substantial risk to Cypress due to many factors including the
remaining effort to achieve technical feasibility, rapidly changing customer requirements and competitive
threats from other companies and technologies. Additionally, the value of the other intangible assets acquired
may become impaired. The in-process research and development valuation as well as the valuation of other
intangible assets was prepared by management, utilizing valuation methods that are recognized by the Securi-
ties and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) staff. However, there can be no assurance that the SEC staff will not
take issue with any assumptions used in the valuation model and require Cypress to revise the amount allo-
cated to in-process research and development.

The amounts allocated to current technology, and assembled workforce are being amortized over their esti-
mated useful lives of five years using the straight-line method. There was no goodwill associated with the
acquisition of Anchor.

Acquisition from Altera

On October 5, 1999, Cypress announced that it has signed a definitive agreement with Altera Corporation
(“Altera”) to acquire Altera’s MAX 5000 Programmable Logic Device (“PLD”) product line and its equity
interest in Cypress’s wafer fabrication facility in Round Rock, Texas (“Fab 2”) for approximately $13.0 mil-
lion in cash. The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase. In 1988, Altera licensed its MAX 5000 family
of products to Cypress in consideration of manufacturing capacity. Altera later acquired a 17% equity interest
in the Round Rock wafer fabrication facility. By acquiring Altera's equity interest in October 1999, Fab 2 is
now 100% owned by Cypress.

Merger with IC WORKS Incorporated

On April 1, 1999, Cypress completed a merger with IC WORKS Incorporated (“ICW”), which was accounted
for as a pooling of interests. The condensed consolidated financial statements and the notes to the condensed
consolidated financial statements give effect to the merger for all periods presented. The fiscal years of
Cypress and ICW were different. ICW has changed its fiscal year-end to coincide with that of Cypress.
Cypress’s consolidated statements of operations for the periods ended January 3, 1999 and December 27,
1997, have been combined with ICW’s consolidated statements of operations for the corresponding twelve
month periods ended December 28, 1998 and March 28, 1998.

During fiscal 1999, Cypress recorded merger-related transaction costs of $3.7 million related to the acquisition
of ICW. These charges, which consist primarily of investment banking and other professional fees, have been
included under acquisition and merger costs in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Note 3: Restructuring and Other Non-Recurring Costs

1999 Restructuring, Merger and Acquisition, and Other Non-Recurring Costs

During fiscal 1999, Cypress recorded a net $33.8 million in restructuring, merger and acquisition, and other
non-recurring costs. These one-time, non-recurring costs included a $12.3 million write-off of a certain manu-
facturing asset that is not in service and will be scrapped and an $11.9 million one-time compensation charge
associated with retention and performance payments to key employees in December 1999. In the first quarter
of fiscal 1999, Cypress recorded one-time charges of $3.7 million associated with the merger with IC Works.
These charges were for investment banking fees and other professional fees. Cypress also recorded $8.8 mil-
lion in costs associated with the purchases of Anchor and Arcus comprising of $4.0 million for in-process
technology, $1.6 million for transaction costs and $3.2 million in amortization of intangible assets. During the
fourth quarter of fiscal 1999, Cypress acquired Altera’s MAX 5000 Programmable Logic Device (“PLD”)
product line and its equity interest in Cypress’s wafer fabrication facility in Round Rock, Texas. As part of the
transaction, Cypress recorded intangible assets associated with the product rights and incurred $0.3 million for
the amortization of these intangibles. These non-recurring charges were offset by a reversal of $3.0 million of
the 1998 restructuring reserve. The reversed charges related to $2.2 million of severance and other employee
related charges and $0.3 million for the provision for phase-down and completion of the Alphatec restructur-
ing activities. Cypress also reversed $0.5 million of the 1998 restructuring reserve for other fixed asset related




charges that were no longer considered necessary. During fiscal 1999, Cypress reversed $0.7 million of the
1996 restructuring reserve related to fixed asset de-installation charges that were no longer required.

1998 Restructuring and Other Non-Recurring Costs

During 1998, Cypress implemented an overall cost reduction plan and recorded a $58.9 million restructuring
reserve. The restructuring entailed:

* The shutdown of Fab 3, located in Bloomington, Minnesota and consolidation of parts of Fab 3 opera-
tions with other operations of Cypress.

* The discontinuance of the 0.6-micron 256k SRAM production in Fab 2 located in Texas.

» The conversion of an existing research and development fab located in San Jose (Fab 1) to eight-inch
capability in order to be compatible with the state of the art eight-inch Minnesota manufacturing facility.

» The transfer of Cypress’s test operations from its subcontractor, Alphatec, in Thailand to Cypress’s pro-
duction facility in the Philippines.

The restructuring activities described above included the termination of approximately 850 employees, prima-
rily from manufacturing, both at Cypress and at Alphatec.

Separate from the restructuring charge, Cypress recorded additional charges of $27.3 million, which were
recorded as operating expenses in the first quarter of 1998. These charges were for inventory reserves ($15.8
million), the write-off of pre-operating costs ($3.8 million), the write-off of an equity investment ($3.1 mil-
lion), costs incurred to reimburse a customer for certain product expenses incurred ($2.5 million) and the
write-off of obsolete equipment in Fab 4 ($2.1 million). The write-down of inventory was made to establish
incremental reserves for excess inventory and was recorded as cost of revenues.

The write-off of pre-operating costs included $2.9 million related to Cypress’s wafer fabrication operation in
Bloomington, Minnesota and $0.9 million related to its assembly and test operation in the Philippines. As a
result of restructuring activities, Cypress wrote off its previously capitalized pre-operating costs as an impaired
asset due to uncertainties surrounding their future economic benefits. These costs were written off to cost of
revenues. There were no capitalized pre-operating costs subsequent to the first quarter of 1998.

The $3.1 million write-off of the equity investment was recorded against net interest and other income to
reflect the decline in the value of an investment. Selling, general and administrative costs included the write-
off of $2.5 million in costs incurred to reimburse a customer for certain product expenses incurred. During
Cypress’s periodic review of equipment, some equipment was identified as obsolete and $2.1 million was
charged to cost of revenues to write-off the obsolete equipment.

The following tables set forth charges taken against the reserve during fiscal 1999 and restructuring expense
and charges taken from the date the restructuring commenced through January 2, 2000.

(In thousands)

Balance Balance
January 3, January 2,
1999 Utilized Other 2000
Severance and other employee related charges(!) $ 2309 $ (54 $(2,255 $ —
Other fixed asset related charges(! 3,030 (703) (520) 1,807
Provision for phase-down and consolidation of
manufacturing facilities(") 339 — (339) —
Total $ 5678 $ (757) $(3114) $ 1,807
(In thousands)
1998 Balance
Restructuring January 2,
Expense Utilized Other 2000
Write-down of inventory'!) $ 3250 $ (32650 $ — $ —
Severance and other employee related charges(z) 5,334 (2,234) (3,100) —
Other fixed asset related charges(l) 3,030 (703) (520) 1,807
Provision for phase-down and consolidation of
manufacturing facilities(" 976 (637) (339) —
Total $ 12,590 $ (6,824) $ (3,959 $ 1,807

(1) Classified on the Balance Sheet as part of accrued liabilities.
(2) The amount utilized represents cash payments related to severance of approximately 850 employees.

During fiscal 1999, Cypress reversed $3.7 million of previously provided restructuring costs. $2.2 million of
severance and other employee related charges and $0.3 million for the provision for phase-down and consoli-
dation of manufacturing facilities were reversed in conjunction with the completion of the Alphatec restructur-




ing activities. $0.5 million was reversed for other fixed asset related charges based on the determination that a
portion of the fixed asset removal costs accrual would not be required. These reversals related to Cypress’s
1998 restructuring activities. Cypress also reversed a $0.7 million reserve for fixed asset installation costs
related to its 1996 restructuring activities which was no longer required. In fiscal 1999, Cypress utilized $0.8
million, primarily associated with the removal cost of equipment identified as part of the restructuring.

Restructuring activities associated with Fabs 2 and 3 were completed in May and July 1998, respectively, con-
sistent with Cypress’s restructuring schedule except for the disposal of equipment. Fab 1 restructuring was not
completed in January 1999 as originally planned. Cypress has initiated plans to convert its R&D wafer facility
in San Jose to eight-inch capability and expects to have the conversion completed by June 2000. The Alphatec
consolidation and transfer activity was completed in January 1999, one month later than originally planned.

1997 Restructuring Costs - Cypress (ICW)

During the fiscal 1997, Cypress made a decision to shut down its wafer fab located in San Jose. In connection
with the shut down of the wafer fab, Cypress recorded a restructuring charge of $9.9 million related to the
impairment of assets ($3.9 million), non-cancelable operating lease commitments ($3.6 million), costs associ-
ated with a reduction in work force ($0.2 million) and other transaction costs ($2.2 million). The other transac-
tion costs related primarily to inventory write-offs, expenses incurred to remove and return leased equipment
and brokerage and professional fees. The actual liquidation of substantially all of the impaired assets was com-
pleted in November 1998. The balance of the reserve remaining is expected to be utilized by March 2000
when the operating lease commitment ends.

The following tables set forth charges taken against the reserve during fiscal 1999 and restructuring expense
and charges taken from the date the restructuring commenced through January 2, 2000.

(In thousands)
Balance Balance
January 3, January 2,
1999 Utilized 2000
e ————————]
Operating lease costs $ 2332 $ (1,826) $ 506
Severance costs 60 (60)
Total $ 2,392 $ (1,886) $ 506
(In thousands)
1997 Balance
Restructuring January 2,
Expense Utilized 2000
e
Operating lease costs $ 3615 $ (3,109 $ 506
Severance costs 207 (207) —
Transaction and other costs 2,164 (2,164) —
Total $ 5986 $ (5480) $ 506

In November 1997, Cypress also borrowed $2.0 million from Maxim with interest accruing at 6% per annum.
The note and interest are to be repaid at the earlier of: a majority sale of Cypress, the consummation of a pub-
lic offering of Cypress common stock, or four years from the date of the note (November 2001). In addition,
Cypress entered into a wafer purchase agreement with Maxim that allows Cypress to buy BiCMOS wafers
from Maxim for a period of up to two years.

On the closing date of the transaction, November 20, 1997, Maxim purchased Cypress six-inch wafer fabrica-
tion leasehold improvements and manufacturing equipment as well as certain five-inch wafer fabrication
equipment, which Cypress owned or acquired through capital leases. The carrying values of the six-inch and
five-inch fabrication assets were $14.25 million and $0.4 million, respectively. Proceeds of the sale of these
assets to Maxim were $12.5 million to Cypress.

The following table summarizes the disposition of the six-inch and five-inch fabrication assets held by
Cypress through December 29, 1997.

Six-inch Assets Five-inch Assets

_Carrying value of assets prior to recognition of impairment loss $ 29,500 $ 6,000
Recognition of impairment (15,250) (3,986)
Sale of assets to Maxim (14,250) (400)
Addition asset impairment — (551)

Total assets $ — $ 1,153

Substantially all the assets held at December 29, 1997 were sold prior to January 2, 2000.




Note 5: Equity and Debt Transactions

During fiscal 1999, Cypress filed a registration statement on Form S-3 with the Securities and Exchange Com-
mission. Under this shelf registration, Cypress could, through March 2001, sell any combination of debt secu-
rities, preferred stock and common stock in one or more offerings up to a total amount of $300.0 million
dollars. The entire amount of this shelf registration statement has been used by the transactions described in
this paragraph. On January 19, 2000, Cypress completed a $283.0 million registered-placement of 5-year Con-
vertible Subordinated Notes. The notes are due in the year 2005, with a coupon rate of 4.00% and an initial
conversion premium of 28.5%. The notes are convertible into approximately 6.1 million shares of common
stock and are callable by Cypress no earlier than February 5, 2003. Net proceeds were $275.2 million, after
issuance costs of $7.8 million. Pursuant to the shelf registration, on March 29, 1999, Cypress sold 7.2 million
shares of common stock. Cypress received approximately $33.8 million in proceeds, net of issuance costs,
from the sale of these shares. The remaining 2.5 million shares were sold by selling stockholders. Cypress did
not receive any proceeds from the shares sold by the selling stockholders.

In March 1999, Cypress announced a program whereby all U.S. employees were offered loans to facilitate the
exercise of vested stock options. Under the terms of the program, only options which were vested as of March
1, 1999 and whose exercise price was less than or equal to $9.75 could qualify for a loan. The loans, including
interest, are due at the earlier of three days following the sale of the shares, within thirty days of the date the
individual ceases to be an employee of Cypress or 3 years from the grant date of the loan. The loans bear inter-
est and are secured by full recourse. At January 2, 2000, loans receivable and accrued interest under this pro-
gram totaled $8.2 million.

In fiscal years 1997 and 1998, the Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to 14.0 million shares of
Cypress’s common stock. Through January 3, 1999, 8.1 million shares had been repurchased under this entire
program for $67.5 million. On February 25, 1999, the Board of Directors terminated the stock repurchase pro-
gram. The unsold repurchased shares were and are expected to continue to be used for option exercises under
Cypress’s 1994 Stock Option Plan and stock purchases under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan. During
1998, Cypress reissued 1.8 million shares of common stock under such plans. During fiscal 1999, Cypress
reissued a total of 8.3 million shares in relation to the stock offering described above and in conjunction with
the 1994 Stock Option Plan and Employee Purchase Plan. Such shares had been repurchased under the 1997/
1998 repurchase programs as well as repurchase programs prior to 1997.

Convertible Subordinated Notes

In 1998, Cypress retired a total of $15.0 million principal of its $175.0 million, 6.0% Convertible Subordinated
Notes (“Notes”) for $12.9 million, resulting in a pre-tax net gain of $1.7 million. The gain was offset by the
write-off of bond issuance costs of $0.4 million (pre-tax). The net gain was recorded as interest and other
income. The Notes, which were issued in September 1997, are due October 1, 2002 and contain a coupon rate
of 6.0% and an initial conversion premium of 48.2%. The remaining outstanding Notes are convertible into
approximately 6,772,000 shares of common stock and are callable by Cypress on or after October 2, 2000. The
Notes are unsecured subordinated obligations.

In February 1997, Cypress called for redemption of all of the 3.15% Convertible Subordinated Notes which
was effective as of March 26, 1997. At the time of conversion, approximately 85% of the holders elected to
convert their notes into Cypress’s common stock, increasing the amount of common stock outstanding by
6,789,013 shares. As a result of holders electing the cash settlement, Cypress paid out $14.3 million.

Notes Payable

During 1997, Cypress entered into an agreement to borrow $2.0 million from a third party with interest accru-
ing at 6.0% per annum. The loan was repaid in April 1999. Also during 1997, Cypress issued promissory notes
to three significant customers for $2.0 million, $1.4 million and $0.3 million, bearing interest at 6.0%, 10.0%
and 7.5%, respectively and due in October 2000, August 2000 and July 1999, respectively. As of January 2,
2000, a total of $0.7 million was payable under the notes.

Line of Credit

In 1997, Cypress established a revolving line of credit with a bank totaling up to $6.5 million. Cypress can-
celled this line of credit in June 1999.

In July 1996, Cypress established a three-year $100.0 million unsecured revolving credit facility with Bank of
America National Trust and Savings Association as agent on behalf of certain banks. In 1998, Cypress can-
celled this line of credit.

Note 6: Earnings (Loss) Per Share

As required by SFAS 128, following is a reconciliation of the numerators and the denominators of the basic
and diluted earnings (loss) per share computation:




(In thousands, except per-share amounts)

1999 1998 1997
Per- Per- Per-
Share Share Share
Income Shares Amount Loss Shares Amount Income Shares Amount
Basic EPS:
Net income (loss) $91,054 104,703 $0.87 $(104,918) 101,944 $(1.03) §$7,526 100,137 $0.08
Effects of dilutive securities: T o
Stock options — 7,032 — — 7,729
Diluted EPS:
Net income (loss) $91,054 111,735 $0.81 $(104,918) 101,944 $(1.03) $7,526 107,866 $0.07

At January 2, 2000, January 3, 1999 and December 29, 1997, options to purchase 47,000, 24,774,000 and
5,696,000 shares, respectively, of common stock were outstanding, but were excluded in the computation of
diluted EPS as their effect was anti-dilutive. Convertible debentures outstanding at January 2, 2000, January 3,
1999 and December 29, 1997 convertible to 6,772,000, 6,772,000 and 7,408,000 shares, respectively, of com-
mon stock were also excluded from diluted EPS as their effect was anti-dilutive.

Note 7: Common Stock Option and Other Employee Benefit Plans

1999 and 1994 Stock Option Plans

In 1999, Cypress adopted the 1999 Stock Option Plan (“The Plan”). Under the terms of the Plan, options may
be granted to qualified employees of acquired companies and consultants of Cypress or its majority-owned
subsidiaries. Options become exercisable over a vesting period as determined by the Board of Directors and
expire over terms not exceeding ten years from the date of grant. The option price for shares granted, under the
Plan, is typically equal to the fair market value of the common stock at the date of grant.

In 1994, Cypress adopted the 1994 Stock Option Plan, which replaced Cypress’s 1985 Incentive Stock Option
Plan and the 1988 Directors’ Stock Option Plan (the “Terminated Plans™) with respect to future option grants.
Under the terms of the 1994 Stock Option Plan, options may be granted to qualified employees, consultants,
officers and directors of Cypress or its majority-owned subsidiaries. Options become exercisable over a vest-
ing period as determined by the Board of Directors and expire over terms not exceeding twenty years from the
date of grant. The option price for shares granted, under the 1994 Stock Option Plan, is typically equal to the
fair market value of the common stock at the date of grant. The 1994 Stock Option Plan includes shares that
remained available under the Terminated Plans and provides for an annual increase in shares available for
issuance pursuant to non-statutory stock options equal to 4.5% of Cypress’s outstanding common stock at the
end of each fiscal year.

In January 1998, substantially all outstanding stock options with an exercise price in excess of $9.75 per share
were cancelled and replaced with new options having an exercise price of $9.75 per share, the fair market
value on the date that the employees accepted the repricing. A total of 10,464,000 shares were repriced. This
repricing excluded the Board of Directors, the Chief Executive Officer and the Executive staff of Cypress.

The following table summarizes Cypress’s stock option activity and related weighted average exercise price
for each category for the years ended January 2, 2000, January 3, 1999 and December 29, 1997. The weighted
average exercise price for each category presented is also shown in the table below.

Shares Under the 1994 and 1999 Stock Option Plan

(In thousands, except per-share amounts)

1999 1998 1997
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price

Options outstanding, 26,515 $ 8.29 23,923 $ 927 22,172 $ 8.54
beginning of year

Options cancelled (2,011) 9.99  (13,862) 11.24 (1,903) 8.83
Options granted 8,626 17.48 17,593 9.12 6,618 10.73
Options exercised (1,766) 7.62 (1,139) 5.30 (2,964) 7.18
Options outstanding, end of year 25,364 1148 26,515 8.32 23,923 9.27
Options exercisable at o o
January 2, 2000 9,574 $ 8.57

All options were granted at an exercise price equal to the market value of Cypress’s stock at the date of grant.
The weighted average estimated fair value at the date of grant, as defined by SFAS 123, for options granted in
1999, 1998 and 1997 was $8.98, $3.61 and $5.06 per option, respectively. The estimated grant date fair value
is calculated using the Black-Scholes model. The Black-Scholes model, as well as other currently accepted
option valuation models, was developed to estimate the fair value of freely tradable, fully transferable options




without vesting restrictions, which significantly differ from Cypress’s stock option awards. These models also
require highly subjective assumptions, including future stock price volatility and expected time until exercise,
which greatly affect the calculated grant date fair value.

The following weighted average assumptions are included in the estimated grant date fair value calculations
for Cypress’s stock option awards:

1999 1998 1997
Expected life 7 years 7 years 6 years
Risk-free interest rate 5.76% 5.41% 6.63%
Volatility .5668 5467 .5529
Dividend yield 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Significant option groups outstanding as of January 2, 2000 and the related weighted average exercise price
and contractual life information, are as follows:

(In thousands, except per-share amounts)

Outstanding Exercisable

Options with exercise prices range Remaining
from Shares Price Shares Price Life (years)
$ 1.00—8§ 8.25 4,239 $ 445 2,600 § 440 5.57
$ 826—9% 9.00 4,277 $ 851 1,769 $§ 8.50 7.64
$ 9.01—9% 9.74 1,610 $ 939 315 $§ 9.28 7.89
$ 9.75—8§ 9.75 5,748 $ 975 3,344 $ 975 6.73
$ 9.76 — $17.50 4,345 $ 11.94 1,327 $ 11.63 7.22
$17.51 — $29.25 5,145 $ 21.95 219 $ 21.21 9.72

Employee Qualified Stock Purchase Plan

In 1986, Cypress approved an Employee Qualified Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”), which allows eligible
employees of Cypress and its subsidiaries to purchase shares of common stock through payroll deductions.
The ESPP consists of consecutive 24-month offering periods composed of four 6-month exercise periods. The
shares can be purchased at the lower of 85% of the fair market value of the common stock at the date of com-
mencement of this two-year offering period or at the last day of each 6-month exercise period. Purchases are
limited to 10% of an employee’s eligible compensation, subject to a maximum annual employee contribution
limited to a $25,000 market value (calculated as the employee’s enrollment price multiplied by the number of
purchased shares). Of the 11,373,000 shares authorized under the ESPP, 7,320,000 shares were issued through
1999 including 953,000, 890,000 and 541,000 shares in 1999, 1998, and 1997, respectively.

Compensation costs (included in pro forma net income and net income per share amounts) for the grant date
fair value, as defined by SFAS 123, of the purchase rights granted under the ESPP were calculated using the
Black-Scholes model. The following weighted average assumptions are included in the estimated grant date
fair value calculations for rights to purchase stock under the ESPP:

1999 1998 1997
Expected life 6 months 6 months 6 months
Risk-free interest rate 5.94% 5.94% 5.80%
Volatility 5773 5773 .5861
Dividend yield 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

The weighted average estimated grant date fair value, as defined by SFAS 123, or rights to purchase stock
under the ESPP granted in 1999, 1998 and 1997 were $7.50, $2.56 and $5.49 per share, respectively.

Pro Forma Net Income (Loss) and Net Income (Loss) Per Share

If Cypress had recorded compensation costs based on the estimated grant date fair value, as defined by SFAS
123, for awards granted under its 1994 Stock Option Plan, its 1999 Stock Option Plan and its Employee Stock
Purchase Plan, Cypress’s pro forma net income (loss) and earnings per share for the years ended January 2,
2000, January 3, 1999 and December 29, 1997 would have been as follows:




(In thousands, except per-share amounts)

1999 1998 1997
Pro forma net income (loss):
Basic $ 58,849 $ (135,907) $ (17,545)
Diluted $ 58,849 $ (135,907) $ (17,545)
Pro forma net income (loss) per share:
Basic $§ 056 $ (1.34) $  (0.18)
Diluted $ 053 $ (1.34) $ (0.18)

The pro forma effect on net income (loss) and net income (loss) per share for 1999, 1998 and 1997 is not rep-
resentative of the pro forma effect on net income in the future years because it does not take into consideration
pro forma compensation expense related to grants prior to 1995.

Deferred Compensation

Cypress recorded a provision for deferred compensation of approximately $1,638,000 for the difference
between the grant or issuance price and the deemed fair value for financial reporting purposes of certain
Cypress common stock options granted or common stock issued in fiscal year ended January 3, 1999. These
amounts are being amortized over the vesting period of the individual stock options or stock, generally a
period of four to five years. The deferred compensation expense provision was reduced by approximately
$263,000 in fiscal 1997, representing an unvested portion of deferred compensation expense for wafer fabrica-
tion employees terminated in fiscal 1998 upon the sale to Maxim. Deferred compensation expense, which was
recognized, totaled approximately $668,000, $653,000 and $191,000 in fiscal years 1999, 1998 and 1997,
respectively.

Other Employee Benefit Plans

Cypress also maintains a Section 401(k) Plan, New Product Bonus Plan, Key Employee Bonus Plan and
Deferred Compensation Plan. The 401(k) Plan provides participating employees with an opportunity to accu-
mulate funds for retirement and hardship. Eligible participants may contribute up to 15% of their eligible earn-
ings to the Plan Trust. Cypress does not make contributions to the plan.

Under the New Product Bonus Plan, which started in 1997, all qualified employees are provided bonus pay-
ments based on Cypress attaining certain levels of new product revenue, plus attaining certain levels of profit-
ability. In 1999, 1998 and 1997, $6.9 million, $0.7 million and $0.5 million, respectively were charged to
operations in connection with the New Product Bonus Plan.

In 1994, a Key Employee Bonus Plan was established, which provides for bonus payments to selected
employees upon achievement of certain Cypress and individual performance targets. In 1999 and 1998, $4.9
and $4.1 million, respectively, were charged to operations in connection with this Plan. In 1997, there were no
charges to operations in connection with this Plan. Employees eligible under the Key Employee Bonus Plan
can elect to participate in the Deferred Compensation Plan, which allows eligible employees to defer their sal-
ary, bonus and other related payments. Costs incurred by Cypress for the Deferred Compensation Plan during
fiscal years 1999, 1998 and 1997 were insignificant.

Note 8: Income Taxes

The components of the provision for income taxes are summarized below. Income before taxes is principally
attributed to domestic operations.

Components of the Provision for Income Taxes

(In thousands)
January 2, January 3, December 29,
2000 1999 1997
Income (loss) before provision for taxes $ 95,871 $ (118,441) $ 13,139
Current tax expense:
U.S. Federal $ 13,913 $ (13,237) $ (10,483)
State and local 115 — 1,418
Foreign 760 511 500
Total current 14,788 (12,726) (8,565)
Deferred tax expense (benefit):
U.S. Federal (9,971) (4,210) 16,033
State and local — 3,413 (1,855)
Total deferred 9,971) (797) 14,178

Total $ 4,817 $ (13,523) $ 5613




The tax provision (benefit) differs from the amounts obtained by applying the statutory U.S. Federal Income
Tax Rate to income before taxes as shown below.

Tax Provision Difference

(In thousands)
January 2, January 3, December 29,
2000 1999 1997
Statutory rate 35% 35% 35%
Tax at U.S. statutory rate $ 33,554 $(41,454) $4,599
Foreign earnings (11,442) (4,153) (1,151)
State income taxes, net of federal benefit 114 3,413 922
Tax credits (9,568) (3,700) (2,274)
Net Foreign Sales Corporation (FSC) benefit (265) — (78)
Benefit of tax free investments (80) (350) (482)
Current year loss with no benefit — 18,498 3,812
Utilization of net operating loss (8,968) (1,740) —
Future benefits not recognized — 15,900 —
Acquisition costs 4,324 — —
Income of acquired companies previously taxed (2,611) — —
Other, net (241) (805) 265
F/S discrepancy — 868 —
Total $4,817 $ (13,523) $5,613

The components of the net deferred tax assets at January 2, 2000 and January 3, 1999, under SFAS 109 were as
follows:

(In thousands)

January 2,2000 January 3, 1999

Deferred tax assets:

Deferred income on sales to distributors $ 16,185 $ 11,024
Inventory reserves and basis differences 7,136 15,928
Restructuring and legal reserves 22,804 2,161
Asset valuation and other reserves 10,562 26,564
State tax, net of federal tax (48) 420
Research and development tax credits 25,702 9,204
Net operating loss 4,839 41,330
Intangibles arising from acquisitions 12,093 —
Other, net 5,931 1,942
Total deferred tax assets 105,204 108,573
Deferred tax liabilities:
Excess of tax over book depreciation (43,900) (39,856)
Intangibles arising from acquisitions (12,093) —
Other, net (107) (1,209)
Total deferred tax liabilities (56,100) (41,065)
Net deferred tax asset 49,104 67,508
Valuation allowance (39,133) (67,508)
Net deferred tax assets after valuation allowance $ 9971 $ —

A $13.8 million tax benefit associated with disqualifying dispositions of stock options and employee stock
purchase plan shares was realized in 1999. There were no tax benefits associated with disqualifying disposi-
tions of stock options or employee stock purchase plan shares realized in 1998.

During 1998, the United States Internal Revenue Service began an examination of tax returns for fiscal years
1994 through 1996. The examination is expected to continue through May 2000. Management believes that no
material adjustments will ultimately result from this examination.




Other current assets include current deferred tax assets of $10.0 million at January 2, 2000. Other assets
include deferred tax assets of $9.8 million at January 2, 2000. There were no deferred tax assets as of January
3, 1999.

Note 9: Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Lease Commitments

Cypress leases most of its manufacturing and office facilities under non-cancelable operating lease agreements
that expire at various dates through 2012. These leases require Cypress to pay taxes, insurance, and mainte-
nance expenses, and provide for renewal options at the then fair market rental value of the property.

In April 1997, Cypress sold capital equipment located in its Minnesota wafer fabrication facility to Fleet Cap-
ital Leasing (“Fleet”) in a sale-leaseback agreement. In October 1997, Cypress entered into a similar agree-
ment with Comdisco, Inc. (“Comdisco”) for other capital equipment located in Minnesota. Cypress received a
total of $28.2 million from Fleet and Comdisco in exchange for the capital equipment and as a result of the
transactions, recorded an immaterial gain that is being amortized over the life of the leases.

In 1994 and 1995, Cypress entered into three operating lease agreements with respect to its office and manu-
facturing facilities, in San Jose and Minnesota, respectively. In April 1996, Cypress entered into an additional
lease agreement related to two office facilities in San Jose. These agreements require quarterly payments that
vary based on the London Interbank Offering Rate (“LIBOR?”), plus a spread. All leases provide Cypress with
the option of either acquiring the property at its original cost or arranging for the property to be acquired at the
end of the respective lease terms. Cypress is contingently liable under certain first-loss clauses for up to $52.7
million at January 3, 1999. First loss clauses state that Cypress is potentially liable for any decline in the value
of the property up to a specified percentage. The purchase option then permits Cypress to acquire the property
at the lower value. Based on management's estimate of the fair value of the properties, no liability was
required to be recorded at January 2, 2000, January 3, 1999 or December 29, 1997. Furthermore, Cypress is
required to maintain a specific level of restricted cash or investments to serve as collateral for these leases and
maintain compliance with certain financial covenants. As of January 2, 2000, the amount of restricted invest-
ments recorded was $61.2 million, which is in compliance with these agreements. These restricted cash or
investments are classified as non-current on the balance sheet.

The aggregate annual rental commitments under non-cancelable operating leases as of January 2, 2000 are as
follows:

(In thousands)

Fiscal Year
2000 $ 23,892
2001 11,168
2002 8,333
2003 8,093
2004 4,730
2005 and thereafter —
Total $ 56,216

Rental expense was approximately $18.0 million in 1999, $21.9 million in 1998 and $17.2 million in 1997.
Litigation and Asserted Claims

The semiconductor industry has experienced a substantial amount of litigation regarding patent and other
intellectual property rights. From time to time, Cypress has received, and may receive in the future, communi-
cations alleging that its products or its processes may infringe on product or process technology rights held by
others. Cypress is currently, and may in the future be, involved in litigation with respect to alleged infringe-
ment by Cypress of another party’s patents. In the future, Cypress may be involved with litigation to:

» Enforce its patents or other intellectual property rights.

+ Protect its trade secrets and know-how.

* Determine the validity or scope of the proprietary rights of others.

* Defend against claims of infringement or invalidity.

Such litigation has in the past and could in the future result in substantial costs and diversion of management
resources. Such litigation could also result in payment of substantial damages and/or royalties or prohibitions
against utilization of essential technologies, and could have a material adverse effect on Cypress’s business,
financial condition and results of operations.

During 1998, EMI Group of North America, Inc. (“EMI”) filed suit against Cypress in the Federal Court in
Delaware, claiming that Cypress infringed on four patents owned by EMI. Cypress and EMI entered into a




license agreement in February 1999, for one of the four patents in the lawsuit. EMI then withdrew two of the
four patents from the lawsuit, including the patent related to the licensing agreement. The case involving the
remaining two patents went to trial in October 1999. The jury ruled in favor of Cypress, finding that none of
the patent claims was infringed by Cypress and that each asserted claim was invalid due to physical impossi-
bility (i.e., the patents require a step that is physically impossible to perform) and prior art (i.e., assuming it is
possible to perform the impossible step, the prior art would have also performed it). EMI may file an appeal,
although no such appeal has been filed as of February 25, 2000. Should EMI appeal the decision of the Federal
Court, Cypress intends to defend itself vigorously. However, should the outcome of this action be unfavorable,
Cypress’s business, financial condition and results of operations could be materially and adversely affected.

In January 1998, an attorney representing the estate of Mr. Jerome Lemelson contacted Cypress and charged
that Cypress infringed certain patents owned by Mr. Lemelson. On February 26, 1999, the Lemelson attorneys
sued Cypress and 87 other companies for infringement of 16 patents. Cypress has reviewed and investigated
the allegations in the complaint and Cypress believes that the suits are without merit. Cypress will vigorously
defend itself in this matter. While no assurance can be given regarding the outcome of this action, Cypress
believes that the final outcome of the matter will not have a material effect on Cypress’s consolidated financial
position or results of operations. However, because of the nature and inherent uncertainties of litigation, should
the outcome of this action be unfavorable, Cypress may be required to pay damages and other expenses, which
could have a material adverse effect on Cypress’s financial position and results of operations.

In June 1997, Cypress commenced a declaratory judgment action in the United States District Court for the
District of Nevada against the Li Second Family Trust (“the Trust”). In this action, Cypress asked for declara-
tory relief to the effect that a U.S. patent relating to a part of the process for manufacturing semiconductors is
unenforceable, invalid and not infringed by Cypress. The Trust has counter-claimed for patent infringement on
the same patent, alleging such patent covers oxide-isolated integrated circuits. In May 1999, in a related case,
the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Virginia ruled that the patent is unenforceable due to
inequitable conduct by Dr. Li and his attorneys in obtaining the patent. Cypress believes it has meritorious
defenses to the counter-claim and intends to defend itself vigorously. While no assurance can be given regard-
ing the final outcome of this action, Cypress believes that the final outcome of the matters will not have a
material effect on Cypress’s consolidated financial position or results of operations. However, should the out-
come of this action be unfavorable, Cypress’s business, financial condition and results of operations could be
materially and adversely affected.

On October 2, 1997, Cypress filed an action against Kevin Yourman, Joseph Weiss, and their associated law
offices in the Superior Court of California (“Superior Court”) in Santa Clara County for malicious civil prose-
cution in the underlying securities fraud actions initiated by Messrs. Yourman and Weiss in 1992. The underly-
ing securities fraud actions were dismissed because no officer of Cypress made any actionable false or
misleading statements or omissions. An appeal affirmed the lower court’s finding that Messrs. Yourman and
Weiss failed to put forth evidence showing a genuine issue of fact with regard to any statements by Cypress’s
officers. On May 4, 1999, the Superior Court granted a summary judgment motion by Messrs. Yourman and
Weiss, holding that Messrs. Yourman and Weiss had probable cause to bring the underlying litigation. Cypress
is appealing the decision. However, the results of litigation are unpredictable. Cypress believes that this action,
regardless of its outcome, will have little, if any effect on Cypress’s consolidated financial position or results
of operations.

Purchase Commitments

At January 2, 2000, Cypress had purchase commitments aggregating $192.0 million, principally for manufac-
turing equipment and facilities. These commitments relate to purchases to be made in 2000 and beyond. Com-
mitments for 2000 purchases will be funded through a combination of cash resources, retirement of
investments and the $283.0 million 4.0% Convertible Subordinated Notes (See Note 12).

Note 10: Related Parties

Between 1992 and 1995, Cypress made cost-basis investments in QuickLogic Corporation (“QuickLogic”)
Series D and Series E preferred stock. In June 1996, Cypress received $4.5 million from QuickLogic, the orig-
inal intent of which was to obtain a minority interest in CTI and to secure guaranteed fab capacity. Cypress
classified the $4.5 million as other long-term liabilities in 1996, awaiting final negotiation of the terms and
transaction approval from Altera, an existing minority interest shareholder. In March 1997, Cypress signed a
definitive agreement with QuickLogic Corporation involving termination of an existing joint development,
licensing and foundry agreement for antifuse Field Programmable Gate Array (“FPGA”) products and the exe-
cution of a new foundry agreement. Under the new agreement, Cypress ceased development, marketing and
selling of antifuse-based FPGA products. In return, QuickLogic paid $4.5 million, which represented $3.5 mil-
lion of NRE revenue related to the sale of technology rights and $1.0 million of compensation for inventory
and other assets, and issued shares of QuickLogic common stock that increased Cypress’s equity position in
the privately-held QuickLogic to greater than 20%. Cypress also entered into a five-year wafer-supply agree-
ment to provide FPGA products to QuickLogic. Revenues and net income contributed by the FPGA product
line during 1997 and was not significant.




In the first quarter of 1998, due to QuickLogic's history of recording losses, Cypress determined that its invest-
ment in QuickLogic had declined in value and the decline in value was not temporary. Accordingly, Cypress
wrote-off its investment in QuickLogic to reflect this decline. During the second half of 1998 and throughout
1999, due to the resurgence in the semiconductor industry, QuickLogic began recording profits. In October
1999, QuickLogic announced its initial public offering. Cypress sold its investment in QuickLogic in October
1999 and as a result, recorded a $36.2 million gain.

Cypress recorded sales to QuickLogic of $7.1 million, $2.3 million and $11.7 million in 1999, 1998 and 1997,
respectively. At fiscal year-ends 1999 and 1998, Cypress had a receivable due from QuickLogic of $0.9 and
$0.6 million, respectively.

During 1990, Cypress made a cost-basis investment of $1.0 million in Vitesse Semiconductor stock. Cypress
sold its remaining investment in February 1997 and recorded a gain of $3.8 million in other income.

Note 11: Segment Information

Cypress has two reportable segments, Memory Products and Non-memory Products. The Memory Products
segment includes Static Random Access Memories (“SRAMs”) and multichip modules. The Non-memory
Products segment includes programmable logic products, data communication devices, computer products,
non-volatile memory products and wafers manufactured by the foundry.

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant
accounting policies (see Note 1). Cypress evaluates the performance of its two segments based on profit or
loss from operations before income taxes, excluding nonrecurring gains and losses.

Cypress’s reportable segments are strategic business units that offer different products. Products that fall under
the two segments differ in nature, are manufactured utilizing different technologies and have a different end-
purpose. As such, they are managed separately. Memory Products are characterized more as a commodity,
which is depicted by high unit sales volume and lower gross margins. These products are manufactured using
more advanced technology. A significant portion of the wafers produced for Memory Products are manufac-
tured at Cypress’s technologically advanced, eight-inch wafer production facility located in Minnesota (Fab
4). Memory Products are used by a variety of end-users but the product is used specifically for the storage and
retrieval of information. In contrast to Memory Products, unit sales of Non-memory Products are generally
lower than Memory Products, but sell at higher gross margins. Some Non-memory Products are manufactured
utilizing less technologically advanced processes. A majority of wafers for Non-memory Products are manu-
factured at Cypress’s less technologically advanced six-inch Fab located in Texas (Fab 2). Products in the
Non-memory segment perform non-memory functions such as floating-point mathematics, store fixed data
that is not to be altered during normal machine operations and data transfer and routing functions of signals
throughout a computer system.

The tables below set forth information about the reportable segments for fiscal years 1999, 1998 and 1997.
Cypress does not allocate income taxes or non-recurring items to segments. In addition, segments do not have
significant non-cash items other than depreciation and amortization in reported profit or loss.

Business Segment Net Revenues

(In thousands)
1999 1998 1997
Memory $ 269,686 $ 195,929 $ 226,566
Non-memory 435,801 358,962 371,919
Total consolidated revenues $ 705,487 $ 554,891 $ 598,485
Business Segment Profit (Loss)
(In thousands)
1999 1998 1997
Memory $ (21,691) $ (94,781) $ (35,742)
Non-memory 108,326 34,997 54,132
Restructuring and other non-recurring (costs) benefits (33,812) (60,737) (9,882)
Interest income and other 52,665 13,356 13,092
Interest expense 9,617) (11,276) (8,461)

Income (loss) before provision for income taxes $ 95,871 $ (118,441) $ 13,139




Business Segment Depreciation

Depreciation by segment for the respective years was:

(In thousands)
1999 1998 1997
Memory $ 66,164 $ 86,905 $ 77,420
Non-memory 41,259 27,693 36,593
Total consolidated depreciation $ 107,423 $ 114,598 $ 114,013

Geographic Area

Revenues are attributed to countries based on the customer location. Revenues by geographic locations were:
(In thousands)

1999 1998 1997
United States $ 345,185 $ 307,938 $ 363,709
Europe 130,484 91,544 99,051
Japan 67,603 51,902 53,701
Other foreign countries 162,215 103,507 82,024
Total consolidated revenues $ 705,487 $ 554,891 $ 598,485
Assets by geographic locations were:
(In thousands)
1999 1998 1997
United States $ 275,553 $ 276,770 $ 373,273
Philippines 77,426 69,996 67,629
Other foreign countries 4,204 2,170 2,877
Total assets $ 357,183 $ 348,936 $ 443,779

Note 12: Subsequent Events

On March 2, 2000, Cypress completed the merger with Galvantech, Inc. (“Galvantech”), which will be
accounted for as a pooling of interests. The agreement provides for Cypress to issue up to 3.6 million shares in
exchange for all outstanding stock and options of Galvantech. The fiscal years of Cypress and Galvantech
were different and Galvantech has changed its fiscal periods to coincide with that of Cypress. Galvantech spe-
cializes in niche, ultra-high performance memories for data communications applications.

On January 31, 2000, Cypress filed a universal shelf registration statement with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC). The registration statement, when effective, will allow Cypress to market and sell up to
$400.0 million of its securities. The shelf registration statement will allow Cypress flexibility to raise funds
from the offering of debt securities, common stock, or a combination thereof, subject to market conditions and
Cypress’s capital needs.




Report of Independent Accountants

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of
Cypress Semiconductor Corporation:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated state-
ments of operations, stockholders’ equity, and of cash flows present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Cypress Semiconductor Corporation and its subsidiaries at January 2, 2000
and January 3, 1999, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended January 2, 2000, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards gener-
ally accepted in the United States which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain rea-
sonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for the opinion expressed above.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Jose, California

January 26, 2000,

except as to Note 12 which is as of March 2, 2000




About Your Investment

Our Common Stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the trading symbol “CY”. The
following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the low, high, and closing price for the common
stock. We have not paid cash dividends and have no plans to do so at present. At January 2, 2000
there were approximately 42,000 holders of record of our Common Stock.

Price Range of Common Stock ($)

Low High Close

Fiscal Year ended January 2, 2000:
First Quarter 7.38 10.38 9.31
Second Quarter 9.31 18.31 18.00
Third Quarter 17.06 28.94 23.38
Fourth Quarter 21.31 33.50 32.38

Fiscal year ended January 3, 1999:
First Quarter 8.06 11.00 10.00
Second Quarter 7.38 10.69 8.25
Third Quarter 5.50 9.31 9.06
Fourth Quarter 8.00 12.00 8.31

Share Price

35 %

30

25

20

15

10

0

86 87 88 89 90 91 92 93 94 95 96 97 98 99

||:| Low M High —= Close




Summary Annual and Quarterly Financial Data

(In thousands, except per-share data and employee headcount)

(Unaudited) Year Ended
Jan 2 Jan 3 Dec 29 Dec 30 Jan 1 Jan 2 Jan 3 Dec 28
2000 1999 1997 1996 1996 1995 1994 1992
Revenues $ 705,487 $554,891 $598,485 $ 569,941 $ 636,108 $ 432,368 $ 327,388 $280,677

Costs and expenses:

Cost of revenues 383,639 409,108 393,769 338,687 298,137 238,082 193,248 167,612
Research and

development 129,331 114,551 104,300 95,546 80,036 59,089 54,467 67,369
Selling, general and

administrative 105,882 91,016 82,026 70,666 77,169 56,800 49,501 47,152
Acquisition-related

non-recurring costs 37,623 — — — — — 18,271 —

Restructuring and
other nonrecurring
costs (benefits) (3.811) 60,737 9,882 10,932 17,800 — (408) 40,896

Total costs and expenses 652,664 675,412 589,977 515,831 473,142 353,971 315,079 323,029

Operating income (loss) 52,823 (120,521) 8,508 54,110 162,966 78,397 12,309  (42,352)
Interest expense 9,617)  (11,276) (8,461) (7,743) (7,522) (4,747) (935) (952)
Interest income and other 52,665 13,356 13,092 9,217 8,757 6,529 2,269 3,416

Income (loss) before

income taxes 95,871 (118,441) 13,139 55,584 164,201 80,179 13,643  (39,888)
(Provision) benefit

for income taxes (4,817) 13,523 (5,613)  (30,476)  (59,206)  (29,628) (4,774) 11,918
Net income (loss) $ 91,054 $(104,918) $§ 7,526 $ 25,108 $ 104,995 $ 50,551 $ 8,869 $ (27,970)

Net income (loss) per share:
Basic $ 087 § (1.03) § 0.08 $ 028 § 1.18 § 0.62 $ 0.11 § (035)
Diluted $ 081 $ (1.03) $ 007 $ 026 $ 1.02 $ 055§ 0.11 $ (0.35)
Weighted average common and
common equivalent shares

outstanding:
Basic 104,703 101,944 100,137 90,247 89,321 81,917 77,318 79,968
Diluted 111,735 101,944 107,886 95,555 106,253 96,096 82,658 79,968

Depreciation/

amortization expense 107,423 114,598 114,013 100,393 67,161 46,576 44,192 51,402

Cash, cash equivalents
and short-term

investments 270,556 160,561 203,870 95,699 165,363 201,618 86,479 86,223
Stockholders’ equity 697,975 498,723 644,632 512,116 492,394 360,648 274,656 264,202
Number of employees 3,810 3,031 2,981 2,426 2,068 1,589 1,385 1,609

Percent of revenue

Cost of revenue 54% 74% 66% 59% 47% 55% 59% 60%
Research & development  18% 21% 17% 17% 13% 14% 17% 24%
Selling, general &

administrative 15% 16% 14% 12% 12% 13% 15% 17%
Total costs and expenses ~ 93% 122% 99% 91% 74% 82% 96% 115%

Operating income (loss) 7% —22% 1% 9% 26% 18% 4% (15%)




Three Months Ended

Jan 2 Oct 3 July 4 April 4 Jan 3 Sept 28 June 29  March 30
2000 1999 1999 1999 1999 1998 1998 1998

$ 207,876 § 184,497 $ 161,523 $ 151,591 § 145,570 § 143,791 $133,376  $ 132,154

106,078 98,528 90,230 88,803 95,623 96,578 91,747 125,161
34,025 32,021 32,335 30,950 30,697 28,184 28,648 27,022
31,057 26,000 25,386 23,439 23,075 22,391 21,779 23,771
25,940 1,879 6,062 3,742 — — — —

— — (100) (3,711) — (59) 1,900 58,896

197,100 158,428 153,913 143,223 149,395 147,094 144,074 234,850

10,776 26,069 7,610 8,368 (3,825) (3303)  (10,698)  (102,696)
(2,373) (2,458) (2,463) (2,323) (2,728) (2,745) (2,817) (2,986)
41,568 4,196 3,805 3,096 5,045 4,926 3,278 108
49,971 27,807 8,952 9,141 (1,508) (1,122)  (10237)  (105,574)
(2,498) (1,390) 472) (457) (243) 2,771 1,016 9,979

$ 47473 $ 26417 $ 8480 $ 8684 $ (1,751) $ 1649 $ (9221) $ (95,595)

$ 043 $ 025 $§ 008 $ 009 $ (002 $ 002 $ (009 $ (0.92)
$ 039 $ 023 $§ 008 $ 009 $ (002 $ 002 $ (009 $ (0.92)

109,891 107,508 104,094 97,319 97,695 102,677 103,463 103,406
126,593 117,103 109,100 100,916 97,695 107,299 103,463 103,406
27,091 26,171 26,709 27,452 28,426 26,751 29,519 29,902

270,556 202,791 168,389 225,044 160,561 189,529 186,639 200,450
697,974 626,986 568,635 544,744 498,723 509,037 545,853 556,187

3,810 3,671 3,493 3,124 3,031 2,778 2,826 2,912
51% 53% 56% 59% 66% 67% 69% 95%
16% 17% 20% 20% 21% 20% 21% 20%
15% 14% 16% 15% 16% 16% 16% 18%
95% 86% 95% 94% 103% 102% 108% 178%

5% 14% 5% 6% 3% 2% —8% —78%




CORPORATE INFORMATION

BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE
OFFICERS

VICE PRESIDENTS
AND SUBSIDIARY
PRESIDENTS

LEGAL MATTERS

LEGAL COUNSEL

INDEPENDENT
ACCOUNTANTS

CORPORATE
HEADQUARTERS

REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER AGENT

Eric Benhamou!(!-?)
T. J. Rodgers(“)
Fred B. Bialek
John C. Lewis(I%
Alan F. Shugart(3)

Consultant

Chairman of the Board, Amdahl Corporation
Chairman, President and CEO, Al Shugart International

T. J. Rodgers, President and Chief Executive Officer
Antonio Alvarez, Vice President, Memory Products

Richard Freeman, Vice President, Worldwide Manufacturing
Emmanuel Hernandez, Vice President, Finance and Administration and Chief Financial Officer
J. Daniel McCranie, Vice President, Marketing and Sales

Jose Arreola, Vice President, Research and Development
Dan Barrett, Vice President, European Sales and Marketing
Daniel Benas, Vice President, Corporate Finance

Anthony Cantu, Vice President, Quality

Maurice Carson, Vice President, Operations Finance

David Fleischer, Vice President, Asia Pacific

Peter Fowler, Vice President, North American Sales—West
Jeff Kaszubinski, Vice President, Engineering

Paul Keswick, Vice President, New Product Development
Ilbok Lee, Vice President, Timing Technology

Robert McConnell, President, Cypress MicroSystems, Inc
Daniel Morris, Vice President, Data Communications
Robert Morse, Vice President, Production Planning
Christopher Norris, Vice President, Programmable Logic
Mitsuo Ohtsuka, Vice President, Japan

Rich Parker, Vice President, North American Distribution
Julie Pestka-Schardt, Vice President, Human Resources
Cathal Phelan, Vice President, Interface Products

John Ramacciotti, Vice President, Procurement

Ralph Schmitt, Vice President, Strategic Marketing
Christopher Seams, Vice President, Worldwide Wafer Manufacturing
R. Michael Starnes, Vice President, Process Technology(4)
William Verdi, Vice President, Strategic Accounts

Michael Villott, Vice President, North American Sales
Neil Weiss, Vice President, Treasurer

Questions regarding legal matters should be directed to:
Emmanuel Hernandez, Vice President, Finance and Administration

and Chief Financial Officer

Wilson, Sonsini, Goodrich & Rosati
650 Page Mill Road

Palo Alto, California 94304-1050
(650) 493-9300

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
10 Almaden Blvd., Suite 1600
San Jose, California 95113
(408) 817-3700

Cypress Semiconductor Corporation
3901 North First Street
San Jose, California 95134-1599

EquiServe, L.P.
150 Royall Street
Canton, MA 02021
(781) 575-3981

(1) Member of the Audit Committee
@) Member of the Compensation Committee
G) Member of the Nominating Committee

4 Founder

Telephone:  (408) 943-2600
Facsimile: (408) 943-4730
Internet: http://www.cypress.com

Chairman of the Board of Directors, Chairman and CEO, 3Com Corporation
President and Chief Executive Officer

ANNUAL MEETING

The annual meeting of
stockholders for Cypress
Semiconductor Corporation will
be held on Thursday, May 4, 2000
10:00 a.m., local time, at Cypress’s
offices at 3939 North First Street,
San Jose, California 95134-1599.

COMMON STOCK

Cypress Semiconductor
Corporation’s common stock is
traded on the New York Stock

Exchange under the symbol “CY.”

FORM 10K

A copy of Cypress’s Annual
Report on Form 10K, as filed with
the Securities and Exchange
Commission, will be made
available without charge to all
stockholders upon written request
to Cypress. Direct requests to the
Attention of the Chief Financial
Officer at the corporate office
listed above.




New Products, New Markets

MoBL"™ SRAM = MORE BATTERY LIFE™: MoBL2™ SRAM FAMILY:

4 Transistor II
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o The MoBL™ concept has now turned into a family of products,

In the 1998 annual report, we showed a two-stage evolution in including different densities to support different DSP engines at
SRAM technology to achieve both low active power and low stand- different supply voltages—all with the world's lowest power con-
by power for portable equipment. The MoBL™ (More Battery Life™) sumption.

SRAM on the right has been designed into 36 high-performance
digital mobile phones by almost every top phone manufacturer in
the world (see back cover). There are 400 million mobile phones
sold annually, versus about 130 million personal computers. QUAD DATA RATE™ RAM:

QUADPORT"™ RAM:
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Static RAMs are becoming the transfer medium of choice in switch
fabrics (see letter to shareholders). To increase bandwidth, the QDR™

The QuadPort™ RAM is just that: @ memory with four ports that allows RAM has 2 ports, one for data in and one for data out, and produces
data to be transmitted and/or switched at 133 MHz through each port data twice per clock cycle-on both the rising and falling edges of the
simultaneously for a total bandwidth of 9.6 gigabits per second. clock. The memory thus functions twice per cycle-2 functions/cycle x

2 ports, or four times per cycle, 100 million cycles per second; hence,
Quad Data Rate: 7.2 gigabits per second.

UNIVERSAL SERIAL BUS: e e e
1

l . ! I o B
1 435 Hi | oy
UsB1 uUsB2 USB3 USB5 EZ-USB USB FX INTEL usB 2.0

Our USB family grew through internal design and acquisition last year. USB1 and USB2 are for mice and keyboards, respectively; new this
year is USB3, an enhanced keyboard and hub-a chip that "plugs in" the keyboard to computers and allows a mouse, joystick, and two other
appliances to be connected through it. The EZ-USB and USB FX came to us through our Anchor Chips acquisition. They are advanced
peripheral USB chips that connect high-speed (12 megabits/sec) peripherals whose datastreams cannot be interrupted (voice, video). We
also acquired sole rights to the Intel USB line in 1999. Those sockets will be upgraded to use our Anchor Chips products. The next step in
USB is the new standard, USB 2.0, which will move data 40 times faster at 480 megabits per second. USB 2.0 is a top priority for 2000.



The Right Products For The Right Markets

Cypress components are at the heart of many of the world's leading electronic systems, from networking and telecommunications
equipment, to personal computers and consumer electronics. Cypress targets a range of emerging communications segments, such
as wireless handsets, wireless infrastructure, data storage infrastructure, and Internet switches and routers. That's why more than
two-thirds of Cypress's sales come from fast-growing, dynamic communications companies, including Alcatel, Cisco, Ericsson,
Lucent, Motorola, Nortel Networks, and 3Com. Cypress aims to become the preferred silicon supplier for high-speed systems that
feed bandwidth-hungry Internet applications. Our goal is to have every Internet data stream pass through at least one Cypress IC.

Lucent Technology's™ Broadband AnyMedia DSLAM for central office and DLC applications,
which uses Cypress's clock chips and SRAMs, is a versatile, high-reliability, high-performance
xDSL product.

Nortel Networks™ Meridian™-family PBX (Private Branch Exchange) System provides superior
switching capabilities, with tens of millions of lines installed around the world. Meridian uses
Cypress SRAMs, memory modules, FIFOs, programmable logic, PROMs, and clocks. ——

e
"‘"—-—.J
Mitsumi® sets industry standards for comfort, functionality and reliability with its PC mice. Its Scroll
Mouse, which offers smooth and fast scrolling with a single click, connects to the PC with a
5 Cypress USB controller. '
Cypress's ultra-low-power MoBL™ (More Battery Life™) SRAMs boost battery life in next-generation .

wireless products such as pagers, handheld electronic games, and personal digital assistants (PDAS).
They use up to 90% less power than current standard, low-power SRAMs. In cell

phones, MoBL SRAMs increase talk time-that's why they have been designed Philips
| into 36 high-performance digital mobile phones worldwide, including those of Xenium™

Motorola, Ericsson, Philips, and Mitsubishi (shown).

Motorola

Ericsson StarTAC®

Mitsubishi KE 788

Trium™

EMC Corporation's Symmetrix Enterprise Storage systems provide the industry's highest perfor-
mance, availability, and scalable capacity for all major computing environments. Symmetrix sys-
tems use a Cypress bandwidth-optimized synchronous memory targeted at networking and storage
applications. Among the newest Cypress specialty RAMs is QuadPort™, a 9.6 Gbps-bandwidth
memory accessible simultaneously through four independent ports.

The IBM® Enterprise Storage Server®, code-named "Shark," is the industry's most

advanced disk storage system, bringing precedent-setting levels of performance,

scalability and connectivity to the enterprise storage arena. The Shark uses ]
Cypress Dual-Port RAMs.

The StorageTek™ SN6000 SAN (Storage Area Network) Controller implements an intelligent, dedicat-
ed, high-speed network, improving both data availability and Internet- and business-related applica-
tion performance. This system incorporates Cypress's HOTLink® (High-speed Optical Transceiver
Link) chipset, sync FIFOs, high-speed SRAMSs, frequency timing generators, zero-delay clock
buffers, and the RoboClock® programmable-skew clock buffer.
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